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Representation Letter

The entities that are required to be included in the combined financial statements of WIN Semiconductors Corp.
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018, under the “Criteria Governing the Preparation of Affiliation
Reports, Consolidated Business Reports, and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises™ are
the same as those included in the consolidated financial statements prepared in conformity with International
Financial Reporting Standards No. 10 endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission, * Consolidated
Financial Statements.” In addition, the information required to be disclosed in the combined financial statements
is included in the consolidated financial statements. Consequently, WIN Semiconductors Corp. and its
subsidiaries do not prepare a separate set of combined financial statements.

Company name: WIN Semiconductors Corp.
Chairman: CHEN, CHIN-TSAI
Date; March 21, 2019
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of WIN Semiconductors Corp.:
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of WIN Semiconductors Corp. and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2018
and 2017, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 in accordance
with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and with the
International Financial Reporting Standards (“ IFRSs” ), International Accounting Standards (* IASs” ),
interpretations as well as related guidance endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic
of China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Certification of Financial
Statements by Certified Public Accountants and the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors® Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Certified Public Accountants Code of Professional Ethics in Republic of China (*the
Code™), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In our judgment, the key audit matters we
communicated in the auditors’ report were as follows:

1. Evaluation of inventory

Please refer to Note 4(h) “Inventories” for accounting policies, Note 5(a) for accounting assumptions,
judgments and estimation uncertainty of inventories, and Note 6(e) for the amount of loss on valuation of
inventories of the consolidated financial statements.
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Due to the high industry demand and rapid fluctuation of the price of precious metals, the Group stored a
significant volume of the said material, which resulted in slow turnover of inventories. Therefore, the Group
cannot obtain sufficient information on inventories that were sold or used on the reporting date. Since the
technology changes rapidly, the inventory may be out of date or may not conform to market demand,
resulting in a risk wherein the carrying amount of inventories may exceed its net realizable value.
Consequently, the evaluation of inventory is identified as a key matter in our audit.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

Our principal audit procedures included: Testing the accuracy of the estimations of inventories at the lower
of cost and net realizable value. Referring to the recent selling price and considering the amount of written-
off inventories in the subsequent events to evaluate the appropriateness of the amount of loss on valuation of
inventories or obsolescence. Analyzing the historical accuracy of judgments, including inspecting the amount
of loss on valuation of inventories or obsolescence recognized in prior year and with reference to actual
disposal to assess rationality of the judgments of the current period. Moreover, comparing with the provision
for inventories valuation and obsolescence made in the current year to evaluate the appropriateness of the
assumptions.

2. Business combination

Please refer to Note 4(u) “ Business combination” for accounting policies, Note 5(b) for accounting
assumptions, judgments and estimation uncertainty of assessment of business combination, and Note 6(j) for
the illustration of business combination of consolidated financial statements.

Since the Group had controlled over Phalanx Biotech Group, Inc., the Group subscribed the new shares
contributed by Phalanx Biotech Group, Inc. and became its largest shareholder on July 12, 2018. For the
requirement of the accounting policies regarding business combination, the management of WIN
Semiconductors Corp. and its subsidiaries made judgments in determining the fair value of the consideration
transferred, assets acquired and non-controlling interest. There is a significant judgment involved in
determining the fair value if pre-existing of the acquiree, assets acquired and liabilities assumed given the
specialized nature of the acquired businesses and their related technologies. Thus, the business combination
is identified as a key matter in our audit.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

Our principal audit procedures included: Challenging the valuation assumptions and methodologies, which
were derived from the independent external purchase price allocation report, with the assistance of our own
valuation specialists, to assess the asset valuation models used and their key inputs. Enquiring from
management its performance of operation to verify whether or not it is consistent with the input assumptions
on external market information in order to identify the reasonableness of assumptions underlying the
identification of the fair value if the separate identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the
independent external purchase price allocation report.

Other Matter

WIN Semiconductors Corp. has prepared its parent-company-only financial statements as of and for the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, on which we have issued an unmodified opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and with
the IFRSs, IASs, IFRIC as well as SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission
of the Republic of China, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is also responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including members of the Audit Committee) are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. '

As part of an audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

(8]

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Ya-Ling Chen and Mei-
Yen Chen.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (The Republic of China)
March 21, 2019

Notes to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated statement of financial position,
financial performance and its cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of
China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial statements are
those generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

The independent auditors’ report and the accompanying consolidated financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese
version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the English
and Chinese language independent auditors’ report and consolidated financial statements, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements and Report Originally Issued in Chinese)
WIN Semiconductors Corp. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except for Earnings Per Common Share)

11 S — | § A—
_Amount % _ Amount 3%
Operating revenue (note 6(w)) $ 17,310,716 100 17,086,355 100
Operating costs (notes 6(e), 6(D), 6(z), 6(k), 6{m), 6{q), 6(r}, 6(u), 6(x), 7 and 12) (11,895,545) _(69) (10,758.385) _(63)
Gross profit from operating 5415071 _ 31 _ 6327970 _ 37
Operating expenses (notes 6(c), 6{k), 6(1), 6{m), 6(g), 6(r), 6(n), 6(x), 7 2nd 12): ‘
Selling expenses (238957 (1) 197,524y (1)
Administrative expenses (997,791) (6) (868,302} (5)
Research and development expenses (973,921) (5) (692,809 (4)
Gains (losses) on expected credit impairment 840 _ - - -
Total operating expenses (2.209.829) _(12) _(1,758.635) _(OD®
Net operating income 3.205.342 _ 19 4,569,335 _ 27
Non-operating income and expenses (notes 6(c), 6(g), 6(i), 6(j), 6(q), 6(y) and 7):
Other income 245,718 1 202,740 1
Other gains and Josses 415,834 2 30,093y -
Finance costs {22,456) - (54,946) -
Shares of losses of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity methed {109.815) _ - (158,357 __(D
Total non-gperating income and expenses 529281 _ 3 {40.656) _ -
Profit before tax 3,734,623 22 4528679 27
Total tax expense (note 6(s)) (668.561) _ (4) __ (813,384) _ (5)
Profit 3.066,062 _ 18 _ 3715295 _ 22
Other comprehensive income:
Components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(notes 6(r), 6(s) and G()):
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (34,051) - 20 -
Unrealized losses from investments in equity instruments measured at fair valve through other
comprehensive Income (352,044) (2) - -
Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss 7,730 _ - a4 _ -
Total components of other comprehensive income (losses) that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss {378.365) __(2) 167 _ -
Components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss (notes 6(g),
6(s) and 6(t)):
Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements 46,105 - (714,329 (1)
Unrealized gains (Josses) on valuation of available-for-sale financial assets - - 807,998 5
Shares of other comprehensive income of assockates and joint ventures accounted for using equity
method (33,317) - 9,263 -
Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or
loss - - - -
Tatal compenents of other comprehensive income (loss) that will be reclassified to profit or 12,788 _ - 742932 _ 4
foss
Cther comprehensive income, net {36557 _ () 743090 _ 4
Total comprehensive income ' $_2.700485 _16 _ 4.458.394 —26
Profit (oss) attributable to:
Profit attributable to owners of parent 3,124,454 18 3,764,200 22
Losses attributable to non-contrelling interests (58.392) _ - {48.905) _ -

§ 3,066,062 18 3,75205 _ 22

Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to:
Comprehensive income, attributable to owners of parent 5 2,811,518 16 4,470,438 26
Comprehensive loss, attributable to non-controlling interests (111,033) _ - {12,044y _ -

$_2.700.485 _ 16 _ 4,458,394 26
Earnings per common share (expressed in dollars)(note 6(v))
Basic earnings per share 5 7.39 9.34
Diluted earnings per share $ 7.38 %3

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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(English Translation of Consolidated Fir_lancia] Statements and Report Originally Issued in Chinese)
WIN Semiconductors Corp. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended Decernber 31, 2018 and 2017
(Expressed in Thousands ef New Taiwan Dellars)

2018 2017
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:
Profit before tax s 3,734,623 4,528,679
Adjustments;
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss):
Depreciation expense 3,158,550 2,514,612
Amonrtization expense 63,588 47,398
Reversal of expected credit gains {840) -
Net losses on financial assets or liabilitics at fair vafue through profit or loss 57,848 16,411
Interest expense 22,456 54,946
Interest income {59,064) (26,121)
Dividend income (101,919) (87,859)
Campensation cost arising from share-basex) payments 23,856 -
Shares of Josses of 2ssociates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method 117,837 166,787
(Gains) losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment (2,210) 1,809
Gains on disposal of invesiments (286,514) (163,028)
Impzirment losses on financial assels - 2,635
Changes in biological assets at fair value (1,139) 17,455
Prepayments for business facilities iransferred 1o expenscs 15 -
Total adjustments to reconcile profit (loss} 2.992.473 2.545.045
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Changes in opcrating assets:
Decrease (increase) in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 23485 (831)
Decrease (increase) in notes and accounts reccivable 135,506 (442,676)
Increase in inventorics (150,018) (1,026,689)
Increase in biological asscts (12,397) (92,323)
Decrease (increasce) in other current assels 81.000 (105.198)
Total changes in operating assets 71.636 {1L.707.717)
Changes in operating liabilitics:
Increase {(decrease) in notes and accounts payable (607,933) 912,344
Increase in other payables 143,905 3,10
Increase in other current liabilities 10,804 2,397
Increase in other non-carrent liabilities 1.827 361
‘Total changes in operating liabilities (451.397)} 1,287.892
Total changes in operating assets and liabilities (373.761) (419.825)
Cash inflow generated from operations 6,353,333 6,653,899
Dividends received 4,642 5.200
Inceme taxes paid {878.459) (765.072)
Net cash flows from operating activitics 5479.518 5.894.027
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:
Acquisition of financial assets al fair value through other comprehensive income (84,704) -
Praceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair valuc through other comprehensive income 244,675 -
Proceeds from disposal of nan-current financial asseis at amonized cost 32,300 -
Acquisition of financial assets a1 fair value through prefit or loss {477,593) (1.200,963)
Proceeds from disposal of financial asscts a1 fair valuc through profit or loss 1,486,355 105,289
Praceeds rom disposal of current available-for-sale financial assels - 181.000
Acquisition of non-currcnt available-for-sale financial assets - (229.014)
Proceeds from disposal of non-current available-for-sale financial assets - 150,745
Praceeds from disposal of investments in debt insteument without active market - 30,400
Acquisition of investments accounted for using equity method (389,970) (30.330)
Proceeds from disposal of investments accounted for using equity method 21,925 -
Proceeds from capital reduction of investments accounted for using equity method - 39.833
Acquisilion of property, plant and equipment (3,188,631) (2.694.713)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 4,334 3,947
Degrease (increase) in other receivables due from related parties 181,200 (181.200) ~
Acquisition of intangible assets (46,528) (83,782)
Net cash inflows (ontflows) from husiness combination 56,790 (36,959)
Acquisition of investment propertics - {1,258)
Decrease (increase) in other non-current assels 24,295 (8,784)
Increase in prepayments for business facilitics (2,403,075) (1,299,756)
Interest received 63,792 22,232
Dividends reecived 97.268 82,659
Net cash flows used in investing activities 4.377.367) {5.146.654)
Cash flows from {used in) financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debi 4,891,000 5,963,500
Repayments of long-term debt (5,346,025) (4,320,97%)
Increase (decrease) in other non-current liabilities {#17 14,255
Cash dividerxds paid (2,958,665) (1,811,999
Proceeds from issuing shares - 5,540,000
Payments to acquire treasuey shares - (114,515)
Interest paid (22,945 (53,096)
Changes in non-controlling interests (68.770) {462.802)
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities (3.506.022) 4.754.364
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 16,921 (40,757)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (2,386,950) 5,460,980
Cash and cash equivalents nt heginning of period 7.849.123 2.388.143
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period g 5,462,173 7,849,123

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements and Report Originally Issued in Chinese)

WIN Semiconductors Corp. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Otherwise Specified)

(1) Company history:

@)

3)

WIN Semiconductors Corp. (the “Company”) was incorporated on October 16, 1999 as a company limited
by shares and registered under the Ministry of Economic Affairs, R.O.C. The address of the Company’s
registered office is No. 69, Keji 7th Rd., Hwaya Technology Park, Guishan Dist., Taoyuan City, Taiwan.

The main operation the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group™) are as follows:

(a)
(b
(©)

Researching, developing, manufacturing, and selling of GaAs wafers.

Developing hog farming technology and trading.

Researching, manufacturing and selling of high density gene chips, biochip optical readers and

micro-electrophoresis analyzers.

Approval date and procedures of the consolidated financial statements:

These consolidated financial statements was authorized for issued by the Board of Directors as of March
21, 2019.

New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted:

(a)

The impact of the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) endorsed by the Financial

Supervisory Commission, R.0.C. (“FSC”) which have already been adopted.

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments have been endorsed by the FSC and

are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.

New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations

Effective date
per IASB

Amendment to IFRS 2 “Clarifications of Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions”

Amendment to IFRS 4 “Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts”

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers™
Amendment to IAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows-Disclosure Initiative™

Amendment to IAS 12 “Income Taxes-Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses”

Amendment to IAS 40 “Transfers of Investment Property”

January 1, 2018
January 1, 2018

January 1, 2018
January 1, 2018
January 1, 2017
January 1, 2017

Japuary 1, 2018

(Continued)
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Win Semiconductors Corp. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

: Effective date
New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations per 1ASB
Annual Improvement to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle:
Amendment to JFRS 12 January 1, 2017
Amendment to IFRS 1 and Amendment to IAS 28 January 1, 2018
IFRIC 22 “Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration” January 1, 2018

Except for the following items, the Group believes that the adoption of the above IFRSs would not
have any material impact on its consolidated financial statements. The extent and impact of
signification changes are as follows:

@

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and
when revenue is recognized. It replaces the existing revenue recognition guidance, including
IAS 18 “Revenue” and JAS 11 “Construction Contracts”. The Group applies this standard
retrospectively with the cumulative effect, it need not restaie those contracts, but instead,
continues to apply IAS 11, IAS 18 and the related Interpretations for comparative reporting
period. The Group recognizes the cumulative effect upon the initially application of this
standard as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings on January 1, 2018.

The Group uses the practical expedients for completed contracts, which means it need not
restate those contracts that have been completed on January 1, 2018.

The following are the nature and impacts on changing of accounting policies:
1)  Sales of goods

For the sale of products, revenue is currently measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates.
Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence exists, usually in the form of an
executed sales agreement, that the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the customer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated
costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing
management invoivement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably. Under IFRS 15, revenue will be recognized when a customer obtains control of
the goods. Based on the Group’s assessment, since the timing of the delivery of goods
upon arrival to a customer and the related risks and rewards of ownership transfer are
broadly similar, the Group expect no significant influences on its profit or loss and cash
flows.

(Continued)
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Win Semiconductors Corp. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2) Impacts on financial statements
The following table summarize the impacts of adopting IFRS15 on the Group’ s
consolidated financial statements:
December 31, 2018 January 1, 2018
Balance Impact of Balance Balance Impact of Balance
prior to the  changes in upon prior to the  changes in upon
Impacted items on the adoption of accounting  adoption adoption of accounting  adoption

consolidated balance sheet IFRS 15 policies of IFR§15 [IFRS 15 policies of IFRS 15

Notes and accounts

receivable, net $ 1,388,115 34,250 1,422,365 1,551,390 41.966 1,593,356
Impact on assets 34,250 41,966
Current refund liabilities

(Note) $ - 34,250 34,250 - 41,966 ° 41,966
Deferred revenue (Note) 112,694 (112,694) - 99,514 (99,514) -
Current contract liabilities

(Note) - 112.694 112,694 - 99,514 99,514
Impact on liabilities 34,250 41,966

(Note) Recognized under other current liabilities.

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments™

IFRS 9 replaces JAS 39 “ Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” which
contains classification and measurement of financial instruments, impairment and hedge
accounting. Additionally, the Group adopted the consequential amendments to JFRS 7
“Financial Instruments: Disclosures™ that are applied to disclosures about 2018 but generally
have not been applied to comparative information.

The detail of new significant accounting policies and the nature and effect of the changes to
previous accounting policies are set out below:

1)

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at
amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL). The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is
generally based on the business model in which a financial asset is managed and its
contractual cash flow characteristics. The standard eliminates the previous JAS 39
categories of held to maturity, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. Under IFRS 9, derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is a financial
asset in the scope of the standard are never bifurcated. Instead, the hybrid financial
instrument as a whole is assessed for classification. For an explanation of how the Group
classifies and measures financial assets and accounts for related gains and losses under
IFRS 9, please refer to note 4(g).

{Continued)
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Win Semiconductors Corp. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The adoption of IFRS 9 did not have any a significant impact on the Group’s accounting
policies on financial liabilities. '

Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9 replaces the  incurred loss® model in IAS 39 with the ‘expected credit loss’
(ECL) model. The new impairment model applies to financial assets measured at
amortized cost, contract assets and debt investments at FVOCI, but not to investments in
equity instruments. Under IFRS 9, credit losses are recognized earlier than they are under
IAS 39 — please see note 4(g).

Transition
The adoption of IFRS 9 have been applied retrospectively, except as described below:

- Differences in the carrying amounts of financial assets resulting from the adoption of
IFRS 9 are recognized in retained earnings and other equity as on January 1, 2018.
Accordingly, the information presented for 2017 does not generally refiect the
requirements of IFRS 9 and therefore is not comparable to the information presented
for 2018 under [FRS 9.

- The following assessments have been made on the basis of the facts and circumstances
that existed at the date of initial application:

— The determination of the business model within which a financial asset is held.

— The designation and revocation of previous designations of certain financial
assets and financial liabilities as measured at FVTPL.

— The designation of certain investments in equity instruments not held for trading
as at FVOCL

- If an investment in a debt security had low credit risk at the date of initial application
of IFRS 9, then the Group assumed that the credit risk on its asset will not increase
significantly since its initial recognition.

Classification of financial assets on the date of initial application of IFRS 9

The following table shows the original measurement categories under IAS 39 and the
new measurement categories under IFRS 9 for each class of the Group’s financial assets
as of January 1, 2018.

(Continued)
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Win Semiconductors Corp. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Assets

Cash and cash
equivalents

Debt instruments

Equity instruments

Trade and other
receivables-net

Other financial assets
(Refundable deposits)

1AS39 IFRS9
Carrying Carrying

Measurement categorics Awount Measurement categories Amount

Loans and receivables $ 7,849,123 Amortized cost $ 7,849,123
(Note 5} .

Fair value through profit or 1,164,777 Fair value through profit or 1,164,777
loss loss

Available-for-sale (Note 1) 612,978 Fair value through profit or 612,078

loss

Investments in debt 62,200 Amortized cost 62,200
instrument without active
market (Note 2)

Fair value through profit or 136,530 Fair value through profit or 136,530
loss (Note 3) loss

Available-for-sale (Note 4) 2,842,453 Fair value through other 2,842,453

comprehensive income

Financial assets at cost 22,915 Fair value through other 22915
(Note 4) comprehensive income

Loans and receivables 1,949,638 Amortized cost 1,949,638
(included related parities)
(Note 5)

Loans and receivables 51,748 Amortized cost 51,748

(Note 5)

The following table reconciles the carrying amounts of financial assets under IAS 39 to
the carrying amounts under IFRS 9 upon transition to IFRS 9 on January 1, 2018.

Fair value through profit or loss
Fair value through profit or loss
Debt instruments-fram available-fer-sale {Note 1)
Fotal

Fair value through other comprehensive income

Available-for-sale {including measured at cost)

Available-for-sale {including measured at cost) to
FYOCI (Note 4)

Total

Note 1:

2017.12.31 2018.1.1 2018.1,1 1{18.1.1
1AS 39 IFRS 9 Adjustment Adjustment
Carrying Carrying in Retained in Other
Amount Reclassifications. Remeasurements Amount Earnings Equily
3 1,301,397 - 1,301,307 - -
- 612,678 - 6G12.978 19,854 (19.854)
5 1,301,307 612,978 - 1,914.285 19.854 (19.854}
3 3,478,346 (3,478,346) - - - -
- 2.865.368 - 2,865,368 146.483 (146,483)
s 3.478.346 (612.978) - 2.865.368 146,483 (146.483)

The debt instruments are categorized as available-for-sale

under IAS 39 and

should not be used for other purpose such as receiving the contract’s cash flow.
Therefore, these assets have been classified as financial assets at FVTPL under
IFRS 9. When application of IFRS 9’s classification requirements on January 1,
2018 resulting in an increase and decrease of $19,854 thousand in retained
earnings and other equity interest, respectively.

Note 2;

Debt instruments that were previously classified as investment in debt

instrument without active market are now classified at amortized cost. The
Group intends to hold the assets to maturity to collect contractual cash flows
and these cash flows consist solely of payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

(Continned)
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Win Semiconductors Corp. and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Under IAS 39, these equity securities were designated as at FVTPL because
they were managed on a fair value basis and their performance was monitored
on this basis. These assets have been classified as mandatorily measured at
FVTPL under IFRS 6.

These equity securities (including financial assets measured at cost) represent
investments that the Group intends to hold for the long term for strategic
purposes. As permitted by IFRS 9, the Group has designated these investments
at the date of initial application as measured at FVOCI. Consequently, all fair
value gains and losses will be reported in other comprehensive income. No
impairment losses would be recognized in profit or loss and no gains or losses
will be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal. When application of IFRS 9°s
classification requirements on January 1, 2018 resulting in an increase and
decrease of $146,483 thousand in retained earnings and other equity interest,
respectively.

Cash and cash equivalents, notes and accounts receivable, other receivables
(including related parties) and other financial assets that were classified as
loans and receivables under TAS 39 are now classified at amortized cost.

(iii) Amendment to IAS 7 “Disclosure Initiative”

The amendment requires disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from
cash flow and non-cash changes.

To satisfy the new disclosure requirements, the Group present a reconciliation between the
opening and closing balances for liabilities with changes arising from financing activities as

note 6(ac).

The impact of IFRS endorsed by the FSC but not yet effective

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments have been endorsed by the FSC and
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019 in accordance with Ruling No.

1070324857 issued by the FSC on July 17, 2018:

New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations

Effective date per
IASB

IFRS 16 “Leases”

IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments”

Amendment to IFRS 9 “Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation®
Amendment to IAS 19 “Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement”

Amendment to IAS 28 “Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle

January [, 2019
January 1, 2019
January 1, 2019
January 1, 2019
January 1, 2019
January 1, 2019

(Continued)
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Win Semiconductors Corp. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Except for the following items, the Group believes that the adoption of the above IFRSs would not
have any material impact on its consolidated financial statements. The extent and impact of
signification changes are as follows:

IFRS 16 “Leases”

IFRS 16 replaces the existing leases guidance, including IAS 17 “ Leases”, IFRIC 4
“ Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”, SIC-15 “ Operating Leases -
Incentives” and SIC-27 “Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of
a Lease™.

IFRS 16 introduces a single and an on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A
lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a
lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. In addition, the nature of
expenses related to those leases will now be changed since IFRS 16 replaces the straight-line
operating lease expense with a depreciation charge for right-of-use assets and interest expense
on lease liabilities. There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low-
value items. The lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard — i.e. the lessors will
continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases.

[)  Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

On transition to IFRS 16, the Group will choose to apply the definition of a lease to all
its contracts whether a contract is, or contains, a lease.

2)  Transition

As a lessee, the Group can apply the standard using either of the following:
* retrospective approach; or

« modified retrospective approach with optional practical expedients.

The Group plans to initially apply IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach.
Therefore, the cumulative effect of adopting IFRS 16 will be recognized as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained earnings at January 1, 2019, with no restatement of
comparative information.

The Group will apply the following practical expedients:
« apply a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

» adjust the right-of-use assets, based on the amount reflected in IAS 37 onerous
contract provision, immediately before the date of initial application, as an alternative
to an impairment review.

+ apply the exemption not to recognize the right-of-use assets and liabilities to leases
with lease term that ends within 12 months of the date of initial application.

» exclude the initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use assets at the date of
initial application.

(Continued)
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Win Semiconductors Corp. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

* use hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to
extend or terminate the lease.

3)  So far, the most significant impact identified is that the Group will have to recognize the
right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities for the operating leases of its lands, staff
dormitories, parking lot, offices and factories. The Group estimated that the right-of-use
assets and the lease Habilities to increase by $337,816 thousand and $290,061 thousand
respectively, and prepaid rent expenses, guarantee deposits and intangible assets decrease
by $13,939 thousand, $1,902 thousand and $31,914 thousand, respectively.

The actual impacts of adopting the standards may change depending on the economic
conditions and events which may occur in the future.

The impact of IFRS issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC

As of the date of the following IFRSs that have been issued by the [ASB, but not yet endorsed by the
FSC:

Effective date per

New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations IASB
Amendments to IFRS 3 “Definition of a Business” January 1, 2020
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution of Assets Effective date to be

Between an Investor and Its Associate or Joint Venture” determined by IASB
IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” January 1, 2021
Amendments to [AS 1 and IAS 8 “Definition of Material” January 1, 2020

The Group is evaluating the impact on its consolidated financial position and consolidated financial
performance upon the initial adoption of the abovementioned standards or interpretations. The
results thereof will be disclosed when the Group completes its evaluation.

(4) Summary of significant accounting policies:

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese version
prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the
interpretation of the English and Chinese language consolidated financial statements, the Chinese version
shall prevail.

The significant accounting policies presented in the consolidated financial statements are summarized
below. Except for those specifically indicated, the following accounting policies were applied consistently
throughout the periods presented in the consolidated financial statements.

(a)

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers (hereinafter referred to as “the
Regulations” ) and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations endorsed and issued into effect by the
Financial Supervisory Commission, R.O.C..

(Continued)
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(b) Basis of preparation

()

(i)

Basis of measurement

Except for the following significant accounts, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis:

1)  Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss;

2)  Available-for-sale financial assets and fair value through other comprehensive income
are measured at fair value;

3) The net defined benefit liabilities are recognized as the present value of the defined
benefit obligation, and the effect of the plan assets ceiling disclosure in note 4(r) less
plan assets.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of each Group entity is determined based on the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented
in New Taiwan dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. All financial information
presented in New Taiwan dollars has been rounded fo the nearest thousand.

(c) Basis of consolidation

()

Principles of preparation of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its subsidiaries. When the
Company is exposed to the variable remuneration from investing on other individual or sharing
the rights of the remuneration, also, is able to influence the rewards, the Company controls the
individual.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. Transactions, balances
and any other unrealized profit or loss between the Company and other subsidiaries are all
eliminated while preparing the consolidated financial reports. Comprehensive income (loss) of
subsidiaries belongs to owner of the Company and the non-controlling interest respectively.
Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-
controlling interests even if doing so causes the non-controlling interests to have a deficit
balance.

Financial reports of subsidiaries had been adjusted properly and the accounting policies used
in subsidiaries are same to the Group’s.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions. Differences between the amount paid or received from
fair value and the adjustment of the non-controlling interest are directly realized to the equity
and belong to the owners of the Company.

(Continued)
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(ii) Losing control of subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of its subsidiaries, the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities
and any non-controlling interests of the former subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date
when control is lost will be derecognized and any investment retained in the former subsidiary
at its fair value at the date when control is lost will be remeasured in the consolidated financial
statement.

The difference of disposal gain or loss is between the aggregate of (i) the fair value of the
consideration received and any investment retained in the former subsidiary at its fair value at
the date when control is lost and (ii) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities and any non-
controlling interests of the former subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when control
is lost. The Group accounts for all amounts recognized in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

(iii) List of subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statements:

Shareholding
Namie of investor Name of subsidiary Principat activity December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
The Company WIN SEMI. USA, INC. Marketing 100.90 % i00.00 %%
The Company Win Semiconductors Cayman Islands Co., Lid. (abbrev.  Selling of GaAs wafers 100,00 % 100.00 %
Win Cayman)
The Company WIN Venture Capital Corp. (abbrev. WVC) Investment activities 100,00 % 100.00 %
The Company Phalanx Biotech Group, Inc. (abbrev. PBL) Researching, manufacturing and selling 30,80 % .
i:;ﬁ: density gene chips and testing (Note 1}
wvC Phalanx Biotech Group, Inc. (abbrev, PBL) Researching, manufacturing and selling 582 % -
::rl‘l;g; density gene chips and testing Mot 1)
Win Cayman Chainwin Biotech and Agrotech (Cayman Islands) Co.,  Investment activilies 94,71 % 88.14 %
Lid. {abbrev, Chainwin Cayman) (Note 4) {Note 3) (Nole2)
Chainwin Cayman Jiangsu Chaimwvin Kang Yuan Agriculture Development  Developing hog farming technology and 100.00 % 160.00 %
Co., Lid. trading
Chainwin Cayman Jiangsu Merit / CM Agriculture Development Co., Ltd.  Developing hog farming technology and 00.79 % 60.00 %
trading (Nate 5)
Chainwin Cayman Jiangsu Merit / Cofeojoycome Apriculiure Development  Developing hog farming 1echnology and 60.00 % 60.00 %
Co., Ltd. trading (Note 6)
Chainwin Cayman Jiangsu Chainwin Agriculture and Animal Technology Farm feed development and trading 100.00 % 100.00 %
Co., Ltd.
Chainwin Cayman Formosa Fortune Group Co., Ltd. {abbrev. Fortune BVI) Investment activities - % 100.00 %
MNote 7)
Chainwin Cayman Jtangsu Merit Rurfu Agriculture Develop Co., Lid.  Developing hog farming technology and 100.00 % 50.44 %
trading (Note B)
Fortune BV1 Jiangsu Merit Runfu Agriculture Develop Co., Ltd. Developing hog farming technology and - 49.56 %
. trading (Note B)
PBL PhalanxBio, Inc. Selljng of high density gene chips and 100.00 % -
testing service
PBL Phalanx Biotech Limited Inc. {abbrev. PBL (HK)) Investment activities 100.00 % -
PBL (HK) Onearray Biotech (Kunshan) Co., Ltd. Selling of high density gene chips and 160.00 % -

Note 1:

testing service

The Company and WVC do not hold more than half of the equity shares of PBL. However, the Company subscribed its
new shares contribution and became the largest sharcholder of PBL and obtained control over it on July 12, 2018; hence,
PBL became a subsidiary of the Group since then. Please refer to note 6{j) for the further information.

Note2: On July 1 and October 6, 2017, Win Cayman subscribed the new shares contributed by Chainwin Cayman for
USD $5,067 thousand (NTD $154,149 thousand) and USD $20,000 thousand (NTD $603,400 thousand), respectively.
Also, Win Cayman acquired issued shares of Chainwin Cayman amounting to USD 19,153 thousand (NTD 569,983
thousand) on December 18, 2017. Please refer to note 6(h) for the further information.
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Note 3: On January 19 and August 24, 2018, Win Cayman subscribed the new shares contributed by Chainwin Cayman for USD
$11,888 thousand (NTD $346,297 thousand) and USD $40,000 thousand (NTD $1,228,800 thousand), respectively. Plus,
on January 22 and December 27, 2018, Chainwin Cayman repurchased its own shares amounting to USD $100 thousand
(NTD $2,913 thousand) and USD $2,250 thousand (NTD $69,120 thousand), respectively, which were cancelled
afterwards. Please refer to note 6(h) for the further information.

Note 4: Chainwin Agriculture and Animal Technology (Cayman Istands) Ltd. renamed Chainwin Biotech and Agrotech (Cayman
Islands) Co., Ltd. in June 2018,

Note 5: On September 26 and November 29, 2018, Chainwin Cayman subscribed new share contributed by Jiangsu Merit / CM

Agriculture Development Co., Ltd. for USD $1,900 thousand (NTD $58,007 thousand) and USD $9,800 thousand (NTD
$302,134 thousand). Please referred to note 6(h) for the further information.

Note 6: The meeting of shareholders of Jiansu Merit/ Cofcojoycome Agriculture Development Co., Ltd, had decided to dissolve
the company on Qctober 24, 2018 and has been liquidated on January 25, 2019, respectively.

Note 7: Formosa Fortune Group Co., Ltd. has been liquidated on November 30, 2018,
Note 8: Due to its organization restructuring, Chainwin Cayman acquired 49.56% of the equity of Jiangsu Merit Runfu
Agriculture Development Co., Ltd. from Fortune BVI for USD $1,271 thousand in the third quarter of 2018.

(iv) List of subsidiaries which are not included in the consolidated financial statements: None.

(d) Foreign currency

(i)

Foreign currency transaction

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the
Group at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items
is the difference between the amortized cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the
year adjusted for the effective interest and the payments during the period, and the amortized
cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the reporting date.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair
value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate of the date the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured based on
historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of translation.

Foreign currency differences arising from retranslation are recognized in profit or loss, except
for the following differences which are recognized in other comprehensive income that arises
from the retranslation:

e Fair value through other comprehensive income (available for sale) equity investment;

e A financial liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation to the
extent that the hedge is effective; or

¢ Qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedge is effective.

(Continued)
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Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on acquisition, are translated to the reporting currency of the consolidated financial
statements at the exchange rates of the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign
operations are translated to the reporting currency of the consolidated financial statements at
average rate. Foreign currency differences are recognized in other comprehensive income, and
presented in the foreign currency translation reserve in equity.

However, if the foreign operation is a non-wholly owned subsidiary, then the relevant
proportion of the translation difference is allocated to non-controlling interests. When a
foreign operation is disposed of such that control, significant influence or joint control is lost,
the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation is reclassified
to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes any part of its
interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation while retaining control, the relevant
proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling interest. When the
Group disposes of only part of investment in an associate of joint venture that includes a
foreign operation while retaining significant or joint control, the relevant proportion of the
cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.

When the settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign operation is
neither planned nor likely predicted in the foreseeable future, the foreign currency gains and
losses arising from such items are considered to a part of investment in the foreign operation
and are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities

An entity shall classify an asset as current when:

(@)

(i)
(iii)
(iv)

It expects to realize the asset, or intends to sell or consume it in its normal operating cycle;
It holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading;
It expects to realize the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or

If the asset is cash and cash equivalent (unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period).

An entity shall classify all other assets as non-current.

An entity shall classify a liability as current when:

(i)
(ii)
Giii)

It expects to settle the liability in its normal operating cycle;
It holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading;

The liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(Continued)
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(iv) It does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issuance of equity instruments that do not affect its
classification.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprised of cash on hand and cash in bank. Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Time deposits, which meet the above criteria and for the
purpose of fulfilling short-term commitments instead of the purpose of investing activities or others,
are categorized as cash equivalents.

Financial instruments

Y

Financial assets (policy applicable from January 1, 2018)

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following categories: measured at amortized
cost, financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL.). Regular way purchase or sales of financial
assets shall be recognized and derecognized, as applicable, using trade day.

The Group shall reciassify all affected financial assets only when it changes its business model
for managing its financial assets.

1y

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are
met and is not designated as at FVTPL:

e it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

e its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset measured at amortized cost is initially recognized at fair value, plus any
directly attributable transaction costs. These assets are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses, and impairment
losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in
profit or loss.

(Continued)
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Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT)

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and
is not designated as at FVTPL:

e it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

e its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

A financial asset measured at FVOCI is initially recognized at fair value, plus any
directly attributable transaction costs. These asscts are subsequently measured at fair
value. Interest income calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange
gains and losses, and impairment losses, deriving from debt investments are recognized
in profit or loss; whereas dividends deriving from equity investments are recognized as
income in profit or loss, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses of financial assets measured at FVOCI
are recognized in other comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in other comprehensive income of debt investments are reclassified to profit
or loss. However, gains and losses accumulated in other comprehensive income of equity
investments are reclassified to retained earnings instead of profit or loss.

Dividend income derived from equity investments is recognized on the date that the
Group’s right to receive payment is established, which in the case of quoted securities is
normally the ex-dividend date.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not classified as amortized cost or FVOCI described above are
measured at FVTPL, including derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the
Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset, which meets the requirements to be
measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI, as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets in this category are measured at fair value at initial recognition.
Attributable transaction costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent
changes that are measured at fair value, which take into account any dividend and
interest income, are recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

(Continued)
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Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment,  principal’ is defined as the fair value of the
financial assets on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time
value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding
during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as a
profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest, the Group considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes
assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the
timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers:

» contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
e terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable rate features;
s prepayment and extension features; and

o terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g.
non-recourse features)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets
measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents, financial assets at
amortized costs, notes and accounts receivable, other receivables, guarantee deposit paid
and other financial assets) and contract assets.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss
(ECL), except for the following which are measured as 12-month ECL:

» debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

o other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default
occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowance for accounts receivable and contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL. '

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from defauit events that are possible
within the 12 month after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

(Continued)
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The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available (without undue cost or effort). This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment, as weli as forward-looking
information,

The Group considers a debt security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is
equivalent to the globally understood definition of ‘investment grade which is considered
to be BBB- or higher per Standard & Poor’s, Baa3 or higher per Moody’s or twA or
higher per Taiwan Ratings’.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if
it is more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when the financial asset is more
than 180 days past due.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized
cost and debt securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is
¢ credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes the following events:

¢ significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
e abreach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due;

¢ the lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the
Iender would not otherwise consider;

¢ it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

An impairment loss in respect of financial assets measured at amortized cost are
deducted from its carrying amount. Change in the amount of loss allowance is recognized
in profit or loss.

(Continued)
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The Group shall directly reduce the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the
Group has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a
portion thereof. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off
could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’s
procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights of the cash inflow from the
assets are terminated, or when the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a debt instrument in its entirety, the difference between the carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received or receivable and any cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income and presented in “other
equity — unrealized gains or losses on fair value through other comprehensive income
(loss)” in profit or loss is included in other gains or losses.

On derecognition of a debt instrument other than in its entirety, the Group allocates the
previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognize
under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognizes on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the
carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognized and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer recognized and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in
profit or loss, and presented in the line item of non-operating income and expenses. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognized and the part that is no longer
recognized on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

(ii) Financial assets (policy applicable before January 1, 2018)

The Group classifies financial assets into the following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. A regular
way purchase or sale of financial assets shall be recognized and derecognized as applicable
using trade date accounting.

1y

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling or repurchasing in the short term. This type of financial asset is measured at fair
value at the time of initial recognition, and attributable transaction costs are recognized
in profit or loss as incurred. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value and changes therein, (which takes into account any dividend and
interest income), are recognized in profit or loss, and it is included in other gains and
losses, and other income, respectively.

(Continued)
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Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated
available-for-sale or are not classified in any of the other categories of financial assets.
Available-for-sale financial assets are recognized initially at fair value, plus, any directly
attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair
value and changes therein, other than impairment losses, interest income calculated using
the effective interest method, dividend income, and foreign currency differences on
available-for-sale debt instruments, are recognized in other comprehensive income and
are presented in the fair value reserve in equity. When an investment is derecognized, the
gain or loss accumulated in equity is reclassified to profit or loss, and it is included in
other gains and losses.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables comprise trade receivables, other
receivables, and non-current debt instrument investment without active market. Such
assets are recognized initially at fair value, plus, any directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses, other than
insignificant interest on short-term receivables, Interest income is recognized in profit or
loss, and it is included in other income.

Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset is impaired if, and only if, there is any objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
stand that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes default or delinquency by a
debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the entity on terms that the entity would not
consider otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy, adverse
changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers, economic conditions that correlate
with defaults or the disappearance of an active market for a security. In addition, for an
investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below
its cost is accounted for as objective evidence of impairment.

All individvally significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment. Receivables
that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping
together assets with similar risk characteristics. In assessing collective impairment, the
Group uses historical trends of the probability of default, the timing of recoveries, and
the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgment as to whether current
economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or
lesser than those suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is
calculated as the difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.
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An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset is reduced from the carrying amount,
except for trade receivables in which an impairment loss is reflected in an allowance
account against the receivables. When it is determined a receivable is uncollectible, it is
written off from the allowance account. Any subsequent recovery of receivable written
off is recorded in the allowance account. Changes in the amount of the allowance
accounts are recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognized by reclassifying
the losses accumulated in the fair value reserve in equity to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss of a financial assets
measured at amortized cost decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the decrease in impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not
exceed its amortized cost before the impairment was recognized at the reversal date.

Impairment losses recognized on available-for-sale equity security are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent recovery in the fair value of an impaired
available-for-sale equity security is recognized in other comprehensive income, and
accumulated in other equity. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an impaired
available-for-sale debt security increases and the increase can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, then the impairment loss is
reversed, with the amount of the reversal recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment losses and recoveries in respect of accounts receivable are recognized in
operating expenses. Impairment losses and recoveries in respect of the financial assets
other than accounts receivables are recognized in profit or loss, and it is included in other
gains and losses.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes financial assets when the contractual rights of the cash inflow

from the asset are terminated, or when the Group transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received or receivable and any cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income and presented in other
equity interest— unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale financial assets is
recognized in profit or loss, and included in other gains and losses.

The Group allocates between the part that continues to be recognized and the part that is
derecognized based on the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.

The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part derecognized and the
sum of the consideration received for the part derecognized and any cumulative gain or
loss allocated to it that had been recognized in other comprehensive income shall be
recognized in profit or loss, and is included in other gains and losses.
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A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognized and the part that is

derecognized based on the relative fair values of those parts.

(iii) Financial liabilities

(iv)

1)

2)

3

4)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

A financial liability is classified in this category if it is classified as held for trading or is
designed as at fair value through profit or loss. This type of financial liability is measured
at fair value at the time of initial recognition, and attributable transaction costs are
recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value and changes therein, which takes into account any interest
expense, are recognized in profit or loss, and are included in other gains and losses, and
finance costs, respectively.

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities comprise of short and long borrowings, and trade and other payables,
are not classified as held-for-trading, or designated as at fair value through profit or loss
shall be measured at fair value, plus, any directly attributable transaction cost at the time
of initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at amortized
cost calculated using the effective interest method. Interest expense not capitalized as
capital cost is recognized in profit or loss, and is included in finance costs.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligation has been
discharged or cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability removed and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in profit or loss, and is included in other
gains and losses.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

The Group presents financial assets and liabilities on a net basis when the Group has the
legally enforceable rights to offset, and intends to settle such financial assets and
liabilities on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments, including hedge accounting

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate
exposures. Derivatives are recognized initially at fair value and attributable transaction costs
are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are
measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognized in profit or loss, and are included in
other gains and losses.
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When a derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, its timing of recognition in profit or
loss is determined based on the nature of the hedging relationship. When the fair value of a
derivative instrument is positive, it is classified as a financial asset, and when the fair value is
negative, it is classified as a financial liability.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventories is
based on the weighted-average method, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the
inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their
existing condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost includes an
appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Biological assets

Biological assets are measured at fair value less costs to sell on initial recognition, with any change
therein recognized in profit or loss at the end of each reporting period. Costs to sell include all costs
that would be necessary to sell the assets, excluding finance costs and tax expenses. Biological asset
does not have a quoted market price in an active market and for which alternative fair value
measurements are determined to be clearly unreliable. In such case, the asset is measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Investment in associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, or joint
control over their financial and operating policies.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method and are recognized initially at
cost. The cost of the investment includes transaction costs. The carrying amount of the investment in
associates includes goodwill which arises from the acquisition less any accumulated impairment
losses.

The consolidated financial statements include the Group®s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of equity accounted investees after adjustments to align the accounting
policies with those of the Group, from the date that significant influence commences until the date
that significant influence ceases.

When the Group®s share of losses exceeds its interest in associates, the carrying amount of the
investment, including any long-term interests that form part thereof, is reduced to zero, and the
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or
has made payments on behalf of the investee.
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When the Group subscribes to additional shares in an associate at a percentage different from its
existing ownership percentage, the resulting carrying amount of the investment differs from the
amount of the Group’s proportionate interest in the net assets of the associate. The Group records
such a difference as an adjustment to investments with the corresponding amount charged or credited
to capital surplus. Moreover, a difference shall be debited to retained earnings when the balance of
capital surplus resulting from investments accounted for using equity method is not sufficient to be
written off. If the Group’s ownership interest is reduced due to the additional subscription to the
shares of associate, the proportionate amount of the gains or losses previously recognized in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate shall be reclassified to profit or loss on the same
basis as would be required if the associate or jointly controlled entity had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.

Investment property

Investment property is the property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for
both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. Investment property is measured at cost both on initial
recognition and at subsequent period. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment property.

When the use of an investment property changes such that it is reclassified as property, plant and
equipment, its carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent
accounting.

Property, plant and equipment
(i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment Josses. The cost consists of any cost directly attributable to bringing
the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management, the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item
and restoring the site on which it is located, and any borrowing cost are eligible for
capitalization.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation
to the total cost of the item shall be depreciated separately, unless the useful life and the
depreciation method of the significant part of an item of property, plant and equipment are the
same as the useful life and depreciation method of another significant part of that same item.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying
amount of the item, and it shall be recognized in profit or loss, under net other income and
expenses.

(ii} Reclassification to investment property

The property is reclassified to investment property at its carrying amount when the use of the
property changes from owner-occupied to investment property.

(Continued)
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(iii) Subsequent cost

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group. The carrying amount of those
parts that are replaced is derecognized. Ongoing repairs and maintenance is expensed as
incurred.

(iv) Depreciation
The depreciable amount of an asset is determined after deducting its residual amount and it
shall be allocated on a straight-line basis over its useful life by using straight-line basis. The
items of property, plant and equipment with the same useful life may be grouped in
determining the depreciation charge. The remainder of the items may be depreciated
separately. The depreciation charge for each period shall be recognized in profit or loss.
Land has an unlimited useful life and therefore is not depreciated.
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years of significant items of
property, plant and equipment are as follows:
1)  Buildings and structures : 3 to 25 years
2)  Machinery and equipment : 2 to 10 years
3) Factory and equipment : 2 to 10 years
4} QOther equipment ' 2 to 5 years
Depreciation methods, useful lives, and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date. If
expectations differ from the previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate.

(m) Leases
(i) Lesser

Lease income from operating lease is recognized in income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease is added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized as an expense over the lease term on
the same basis as the lease income. Incentives granted to the lessee to enter into the operating
lease are spread over the lease term on a straight-line basis so that the lease income received is

reduced accordingly.

Contingent rents are recognized as income in the period when the lease adjustments are
confirmed.

(Continued)



(i)

32

Win Semiconductors Corp. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Lessee

Leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. On initial recognition, the lease asset is measured at
an amount equal to the lower of its fair value with the present of the minimum lease payments.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy applicable to the asset.

Other leases are operating leases and are not recognized in the Group’s statement of financial
position.

Payments made under operating lease, excluding insurance and maintenance expenses, are
recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives
received are recognized as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease.

Contingent rent is recognized as expense in the periods in which they are incurred.

(n) Intangible assets

()

(ii)

Goodwill
1}  Initial Recognition

Goodwill arising from the acquisition has been recognized as intangible assets. The
initial measurement and recognition of Goodwill please refer to note 6(j)(iii).

2)  Subsequent measurement

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment loss on
equity investment in investees accounted for under the equity method is not allocated to
any asset, including goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount of such investment.

Other intangible assets

Subsequent to the initial recognition, an intangible asset is measured at cost, less any
accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

Amortizable amount is the cost of an asset, less its residual values. Intangible assets are
amortized from the date that they are available for use by using straight-line method, the
estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

1)  Technical know-how: 12 years

2)  Computer software and information systems: 1 to 10 years
3) Land use rights: 50 years

4y  Others: 1.5~5 years

The residual value, amortization period, and amortization method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life shall be reviewed at least annually at each fiscal year-end. Any change shall
be accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

(Continued)
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Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories, deferred tax assets,
assets arising from employee benefits and biological assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. If it is not possible to determine the recoverable amount for
the individual asset, then the Group will have to determine the recoverable amount for the asset’s
cash-generating unit,

The recoverable amount for the individual asset or the cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. When evaluating value in use, the pre-tax discount rate is
used to estimate the future cash flows. The discount rate should reflect the evaluation of specific risk
resulting from the impact of the current market on the time value of money and on the asset or cash-
generating unit.

If, and only if, the recoverable amount of an asset is Jess than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset shall be reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is an impairment loss
which shall be recognized immediately in profit or loss.

The Group should assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment
loss recognized in prior periods for an asset other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have
decreased. An impairment loss recognized in prior periods shall be reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment
loss was recognized. If this is the case, the carrying amount of the asset shall be increased to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount net of depreciation or amortization that would have
been determined if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Notwithstanding whether indicators exist, recoverability of goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives or those not yet in use are required to be tested at least annually. Impairment
loss is recognized if the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination shall, from the
acquisition date, be allocated to each of the acquirer’s cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the acquire are assigned to those units or group of units.

If the carrying amount of the cash-generating units exceeds the recoverable amount of the unit, the
entity shall recognize the impairment loss and the impairment loss shall be allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Reversal of an impairment loss for goodwill is prohibited.

Treasury stock

Repurchased shares are recognized under treasury shares (a contra-equity account) based on their
repurchase price (including all directly accountable costs). Gains on disposal of treasury shares
should be recognized under “capital reserve — treasury share transactions”. Losses on disposal of
treasury shares should be offset against existing capital reserves arising from similar types of
treasury shares. If there are insufficient capital reserves to be offset against, then such losses should
be accounted for under retained earnings. The carrying amount of treasury shares should be
calculated using the weighted average of different types of repurchase.
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During the cancellation of treasury shares, “capital reserve — share premiums” and “share capital”
should be debited proportionately. Gains on cancellation of treasury shares should be recognized
under existing capital reserves arising from similar types of treasury shares. If there are insufficient
capital reserves to be offset against, then such losses should be accounted for under retained
earnings. Losses on cancellation of treasury shares should be offset against existing capital reserves.

Revenue
(i) Revenue from contracts with customers (policy applicable from January 1, 2018)

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The Group recognizes revenue when
it satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control of a good or a service to a
customer. The accounting policies for the Group’s main types of revenue are explained below:

1)  Sale of goods

The Group recognizes revenue when control of the products has been transferred, when
the products are delivered to the customer, the customer has full discretion over the
channel and price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customer’s acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the products have
been shipped to the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the customer, and either the customer has accepted the products in
accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group
has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

The Group often offers volume discounts to its customers based on aggregate sales of
electronic components over a 12 months period. Revenue from these sales is recognized
based on the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated volume discounts.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate the discounts, using the expected value
method, and revenue is only recognized to the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal will not occur. A contract liability is recognized for expected volume
discounts payable to customers in relation to sales made until the end of the reporting
period. No element of financing is deemed present as the sales of electronic components
are made with a credit term of 30 to 60 days, which is consistent with the market
practice.

A receivable is recognized when the goods are delivered, as this is the point in time that
the Group has a right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional.

2) Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer
of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds
one year. As a consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for
the time value of money.
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Revenue (policy applicable before January 1, 2018)
1) Goods sold

Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and
volume rebates. Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence exists, usually in the
form of an executed sales agreement, that the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the customer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the
associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no
continuing management involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably. If it is probable that discounts will be granted and the amount can be
measured reliably, then the discount is recognized as a reduction of revenue as the sales
are recognized.

(iii) Rent income

Lease income from investment property is recognized in income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. An incentive granted to the lessee is to be recognized as part of the lease
income and it is spread over the lease term on a straight-line basis so that the lease income
received is reduced accordingly.

Income from sublease is recognized in profit or loss, and is included in other gains and losses.

(ry Employee benefits

@

(i)

Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognized as an
employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which services are rendered by
employees.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution
plan. The Group’s net obligation in respect of the defined benefit pension plans is calculated
separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned
in return for their service in the current and prior periods; That benefit is discounted to
determine its present value. The fair value of the plan assets is deducted. The discount rate is
the yield at the reporting date on market yields of government bonds that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations and that are denominated in the same
currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid.

The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the recognized asset is limited
to the total of the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. In order to calculate the
present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding
requirements that apply to any plan in the Group. An economic benefit is available to the
Group if it is realizable during the life of the plan, or on settlement of the plan liabilities.
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If the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating to past
service by employees is recognized in profit or loss immediately.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset), which comprise (1) actuarial gains
and losses, (2) the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in the net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset)), and (3) any change in the effect of the asset ceiling (if any,
excluding amounts included in the net interest on the defined benefit liability (asset)), are
recognized in other comprehensive income. The Group reclassifies the amounts recognized in
other comprehensive income to retained earnings.

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan are recognized when
the curtailment or settlement occurs. The gain or loss on curtailment arises from any change in
the fair value of plan assets and, any change in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation.

(iii) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed when the related service is provided.

A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or
profit-sharing plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

Share-based payment

The grant-date fair value of share-based payment awards granted to employee is recognized as
employee expenses, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees
become unconditionally entitled to the awards. The amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the number of awards which the related service and non-market performance conditions are
expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognized as an expense is based on the number
of award that meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.

For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant-date fair value of the share-
based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences between
the expected and the actual outcomes.

The grant date of the share-based payment is the date the Group inform their employees about the
exercise price and shares.

Income taxes

Income tax expenses include both current taxes and deferred taxes. Except for expenses related to
business combinations, or are recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, all
current and deferred taxes shall be recognized in profit or loss.

Current taxes include tax payables and tax deduction receivables on taxable gains (losses) for the
year calculated using the statutory tax rate on the reporting date or the actual legislative tax rate, as
well as tax adjustments related to prior years.

{Continued)
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Deferred taxes arise due to temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases. Deferred taxes shall not be
recognized for the below exceptions:

(i) Assets and liabilities that are initially recognized but are not related to the business
combination and have no effect on net income or taxable gains (losses) during the transaction.

(ii) Temporary differences arising from equity investments in subsidiaries or joint ventures where
there is a high probability that such temporary differences will not reverse.

(iii) Initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities shall be measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities may be offset against each other if the following criteria are met:
(i)  The entity has the legal right to settle tax assets and liabilities on a net basis; and
(ii) the taxing of deferred tax assets and liabilities fulfill one of the below scenarios:

1) levied by the same taxing authority; or

2) levied by different taxing authorities, but where each such authority intends to settle tax
assets and liabilities (where such amounts are significant) on a net basis every year of the
period of expected asset realization or debt liquidation, or where the timing of asset
realization and debt liquidation is matched.

A deferred tax asset should be recognized for the carry-forward of unused tax losses, unused tax
credits, and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and deductible
temporary differences can be utilized. Such unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and deductible
temporary differences shall also be reevaluated every year on the financial reporting date, and
adjusted based on the probability that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused
tax losses, unused tax credits, and deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Business combinations

The Group treats the business combination as acquisition. Goodwill is measured at the consideration
transferred less the amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed (generally at
fair value) at the acquisition date. If the amount of net assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the acquisition price, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed, and recognize a gain for the excess.

All transaction cost relating to a business combination are recognized immediately as expense when
incurred, except for the issuance of debt or equity instruments.
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The Group shall measure any non-controlling interests in the acquiree either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’ s proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, if the non-
controlling interests are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation. Other non controlling interests are evaluated by
their fair value or by another basis permitted by the IFRSs endorsed by the FSC.

In a business combination achieved in batches, the previously held equity interest in the acquiree at
its acquisition-date fair value is remeasured, and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognized in
profit or loss. In prior reporting periods, the Group may have recognized changes in the value of its
equity interest in the acquire in other comprehensive income. If so, the amount that was recognized
in other comprehensive income shall be recognized on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed the previously held equity interest. If the disposal of the equity interest
required a reclassification to profit or loss, such an amount shall be reclassified to profit or loss.

(v) Earnings per share

The Group discloses the Company’ s basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company. The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to the ordinary shareholder of the Company divided by weighted-average number of
ordinary shares outstanding. The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company, divided by weighted-average number of
ordinary shares outstanding after adjustment for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares,
such as employee stock options and employee remuneration.

(w) Operating segment

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with
other components of the Group). Operating results of the operating segment are regularly reviewed
by the Group’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to
the segment and assess its performance. Each operating segment consists of standalone financial
information.

Significant accounting assumptions and judgments, and major sources of estimation uncertainty:

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with the IFRSs endorsed by the
FSC requires management to make judgments, estimates, and assumptions that affect the application of the
accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income, and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The management continues to monitor the accounting estimates and assumptions. The management
recognizes any changes in accounting estimates during the period and the impact of those changes in
accounting estimates in the next period.

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies do not have significant effects on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment within the next financial year are as follows:
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(a) Valuation of inventories

As inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value, the Group estimates the net
realizable value of inventories for obsolescence and unmarketable items at the end of the reporting
period and then writes down the cost of inventories to net realizable value. The valuation of
inventories is mainly determined based on assumptions as to future demand within a specific time
horizon. Due to the rapid industrial transformation, there may be significant changes in the net
realizable value of inventories, The further description of the valuation of inventories, please refer to
note 6(e).

(b) Business combinations

The related accounting of the business combinations, including consideration transferred, recognized
amounts of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date are measured on the basis
of market unobservable data. It depends on the management’s subjective judgment and causes higher
uncertainty. For further information, please refer to note 6(j)

The accounting policy and disclosure of the Group include that measuring the financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value. The Group uses external information to make the evaluation result agreed
to market status and to confirm the data resource is independent reliable and consistent with other
resource. The Group regularly revises the inputs and any essential adjustments on the fair value to
confirm that evaluation results is reasonable. The Group regularly evaluates investment property using the
evaluation methods and parametric assumptions announced by FSC.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group usually uses market observable data.
Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows:

(¢) Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

(d) Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

(e) Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

The Group recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following
notes:

(a) Note 6(1)-Investment property.

(b) Note 6(z)-Financial instruments.
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(6) Explanation of significant accounts:

{a) Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
Cash on hand $ 702 286
Cash in bank 5,191,898 3,738,352
Time deposits 269,573 4.110.485
S 5,462,173 7.849.123

Refer to note 6(z) for the fair value sensitivity analysis and currency risk of the financial assets and
liabilities of the Group.

- (b) Financial instruments
(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):

December 31, December 31,

2018 2017

Mandatorily measured at FYTPL:

Stocks listed on domestic markets $ 96,955 -

Private fund (Note) 722,405 -

Money market funds 6,308 -
Financial assets held-for-trading:

Stocks listed on domestic markets - 136,530

Money market funds, equity funds and bond funds - 1.164.777
Total $ 825,668 1,301,307
Current $ 103,263 1,301,307
Non-current 722.405 -

$ 825.668 1.301.307

Note: As of December 31, 2018, part of the private fund is during the lock-up period.

Refer to note 6(y) for the gains or losses on disposal of investment and the amount of re-
measurement at fair value recognized in profit or loss.

(i) Non-current financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

December 31,

2018
Stocks listed on domestic markets b 1,205,785

Stocks listed on foreign markets 585,861

Non-public stocks 564.486
$___ 2,356,132
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The Group decided to hold these equity instruments, which are not held for trading, at fair
value through other comprehensive income. These investments were recognized as available-
for-sale financial assets and financial assets at cost on December 31, 2017.

The Group considered the change in the proportion of investment portfolio, therefore, disposed
partial of its equity investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
amounting to $244,675 thousand in 2018, Upon derecognition, the gain of disposal,
accumulated in other equity, amounting to $91,405 thousand was transferred to retained
earnings.

Current available-for-sale financial assets:
December 31,
2017
Stocks listed on domestic markets $ 1.661.,562

These investments were measured at fair value through other comprehensive income on
December 31, 2018. Please refer to note 6(b)ii.

Non-current available-for-sale financial assets:

December 31,

2017
Stocks listed on foreign markets 3 573,401
Non-public stocks 607,490
Private fund (Note) 612.978
$ 1,793,869

Note: As of December 31, 2017, part of the private fund is during the lock-up period.
Refer to note 6(y) for the gain or losses on disposal of investments.

Except for the private fund that was measured at fair value through profit or loss, other
investments were measured at fair value through other comprehensive income on December
31, 2018. Please refer to note 6(b)ii.

Non-current financial assets at cost:

December 31,
2017
Foreign unlisted stocks $ 22,915
Less: accumulated impairment -
Total $ 22,915
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The aforementioned investments held by the Group were measured at cost less any impairment
loss as of December 31, 2017, given the range of reasonable fair value estimates is large and
the probability for each estimate cannot be reasonably determined; therefore, the Group’s
management had determined that the fair value cannot be measured reliably. These
investments were classified as fair value through other comprehensive income as of December
31, 2018. Please refer to note 6(b)ii.

(vi) Non-current financial assets at amortized cost:

Nominal December 31,
Issue period rate (%) 2018
Preferred stock B 2012.11.23~2019.11.22 - S 29,900

The Group has assessed that its financial asset is held to collect contractual cash flows, which
consist solely of payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding. The
Group has designated these investments at the date of initial application as measured at
amortized cost. As of December 31, 2017, these investments were classified as non-current
investments in debt instrument without an active market. Please refer to note 6(b) vii.

(vii) Non-current investments in debt instrument without active market:

Neminal December 31,
Issue period rate (%) 2017
Preferred stock B 2012.11.23~2019.11,22 - $ 62,200

(viii) Sensitivity analysis in the equity price risk:

If the equity price changes, the impact to comprehensive income, using the sensitivity analysis
based on the same variables except for the price index for both period, will be as follows:

2018 2017
After-tax other After-tax other
Prices of securities at  comprehensive After-tax comprehensive After-tax
the reporting date income profit (foss) income profit (loss)
Increasing 3% $ 70,684 2,909 103.663 39.039
Decreasing 3% h) (70,684) (2.909) (103.663) (39,039)

(ix) As of December 31, 2018 and 2017 the financial assets were not pledged. For information on
the Group’s currency risk and credit risk was disclosed in note 6(z).

Notes and accounts receivable, net

December 31, December 31,

2018 2017
Notes receivable $ 459 -
Accounts receivable 1,424,223 1,553,476
Less : allowance for doubtful accounts (2317 (2.086)
$ 1,422,365 1,551.390
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The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for its loss allowance used for expected credit
losses, which permit the use of lifetime expected loss provision for all receivables on December 31,
2018. To measure the expected credit losses, notes and accounts receivable have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and days past due, as well as incorporate forward looking
information. The loss allowance provision for the segment of foundry and agriculture technology as
of December 31, 2018 was determined as follows:

Weighted-
average Lifetime

Gross carrying expected loss  expected credit

amount rate loss allowance
Not past due $ 1,203,680 0% -
Past due 1~60 days 196,437 0% -
Past due 61~120 days 14,825 0% -
Past due 121~180 days 3,148  0%~32.14% -
Past due more than 181 days - 100% -

$ 1,418,090 -

The loss allowance provision for the segment of gene chips testing service as of December 31, 2018
was determined as follows:

Weighted-
average Lifetime

Gross carrying expected loss  expected credit

amount rate loss allowance

Not past due $ 2,708  0%~7.29% 63
Past due 1~60 days 1,053 7.33%~18.55% 119
Past due 61~120 days 563 14.96%~24.59% 129
Past due 121~180 days 482 34.42%~67.65% 220
Past due more than 181 days 1.786 100% 1,786
$ 6,592 2,317

As of December 31, 2017, the Group applies incurred loss model to consider the loss allowance
provision of accounts receivable. As of December 31, 2017, the aging analysis of accounts
receivable, which were past due but not impaired, were as follows:

December 31,
2017

Past due 1~60 days $ 75,864
Past due 61~180 days 5,385
Past due more than 181 days -

) 81,249
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The movements of allowance for doubtful accounts were as follows:

2017
Individually Collectively
assessed assessed

2018 impairment impairment
Beginning balance $ 2,086 3,223 .
Acquisition through business combinations 3,294 - -
Impairment loss reversed, net (840) (962) -
Amount written off (2,173) - -
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates (50) {175) -
Ending balance S 2,317 2.086 -

On December 31, 2017 the Group’s policy of allowance for receivables is as follows:

Assessment method:

(i) At the balance sheet date, the Group evaluates the probability of collection regarding the
receivable in accordance with each customer.

(iiy The Group may recognize 100% allowance of doubtful accounts based on the expectancy of
bad debt by assessing the financial and operating conditions of each customer.

Impairment loss recognized for individually assessed impairment was the difference between the

carrying amount and the amount expected to be collected. The Group also considered the fluctuation
of the economic circumstances and historical collection to determine the recognition of impairment.

The Group establishes a policy of allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical trends of the
probability of default and the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred. The policy is
mainly based on the characteristic of industry and the conservative of business cove.

The Group believed that no impairment allowance was necessary with respect to the past due
receivables that were collectable.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the notes and accounts receivable were not pledged.

Qther receivables
December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
Other receivables—loans to associates $ - 182,249
Others (recognized as other current assets) 125,288 174,033
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts - -
h) 125,288 356,282

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, other receivables were not past due nor impaired.

For information on the Group’s credit risk was disclosed in note 6(z).
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(e) Inventories

December 31, December 31,

2013 2017
Raw materials, supplies and spare parts $ 2,641,108 2,321,414
Work in process 793,552 1,222,193
Finished goods 472,730 201.074
$ 3.907.390 3,744,681

Except cost of goods sold and inventories recognized as expenses, the remaining gains or losses
which were recognized as operating cost or deduction of operating cost were as follows:

2018 2017
Loss on valuation of inventories and obsolescence
(reversal of inventories write-downs) $ 39,227 (29.238)
Unallocated overheads $ 15,156 -
Revenues from sale of scraps S (13.524) (12,534)
Loss (gain) on physical inventory $ (619) 801
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the inventories were not pledged.
(f) Biological assets
(iy List of biological assets:
December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
Consumable biclogical assets $ 103,289 96,738
Bearer biological assets $ 31,059 37,450
(ii) Change in biological assets:
2018 2017
Beginning balance b 134,188 181,319
Increase due to purchase 5,374 46,509
Input costs 405,013 404,325
Depreciation expenses (10,903) (9,840)
Decrease due to sales ' (397,990) (358,511)
Changes in fair value less costs to sell due to price
changes 1,139 (17,455)
Effect of changes in consolidated entities - (104,745)
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates (2.473) (7.414)
Ending balance b 134,348 134,188
Current $ 103,289 96,738
Non-current 31.059 37.450
$ 134,348 134,188
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For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the (losses) gains of $1,139 thousand and

$(17,455) thousand, respectively, was recognized as operating costs of the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as a result of the remeasurement of biological assets at the
(lower) higher of its carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the numbers of the biological assets were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2018 2017

Farrows, hogs and breeders 32,659 31.455

Fair value

The Group uses valuation method to measure its biological assets to determine the fair value of
the hogs and the farrows (which are required to reach a certain weight), less, cost to sell at the
end of the reporting period. If biological asset does not have a quoted market price in an active
market, the asset is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Costs of the biological assets include all of the costs within the growth cycle, such as the cost
of new-born farrows, the feed and the raising farm. The cost of the productive biological assets
shall be depreciated on a straight-line basis over the producible term. The amortized term are
within 24 to 36 months. For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the depreciation
expenses of biological assets (which will be converted into its breeding biological assets) were
$10,903 thousand and $9,840 thousand, respectively.

The Group is exposed to the following risks relating to its hog farming:
1) Regulations and environmental risks

The Group is subject to laws and regulations in various countries in which it operates.
The Group has established environmental policies and procedures aimed at complying
with the local environment and other laws. Management performs regular reviews to
identify environmental risks and to ensure that systems in place are adequate to manage
those risks.

2)  Supply and demand risks

The Group is exposed to risks arising from fluctuations in the price and sales volume of
hogs. When possible, the Group manages this risk by aligning its farming volume with
market supply and demand. Management performs regular industry trend analyses to
ensure that the Group’s pricing structure is in line with the market and to ensure that
projected farming volumes are consistent with the expected demand.

3) Climate and other risks

The Group’s hog farming is exposed to the risk of damage from climate change, diseases,
and other natural forces. The Group has extensive processes in place aimed at monitoring
and mitigating those risks, including regular pig health inspections and industry pest and
disease surveys.

(Continued)
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(vi) As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the biological assets were not pledged.

(vii) Fair value valuation technique of biological assets used inputs that were categorized in level 3.
Pilease refer to the table above regarding the movement of biological assets for a reconciliation
beginning from the opening balance to the closing balance for level 3 fair value. In this period
the fair value hierarchy of the biological assets were not transferred into or out of level 3. The
valuation technique and significant unobservable inputs were as follows:

Items Fair value valuation technique Significar.lt Relationship .between signjﬁcant
unobservable inputs |unobservable inputs and fair value
Hogs in China | Price comparison: Evaluate the quality | Evaluate the changes in fair value,
Estimated value of price according to the quality of
comparison is compared with the biological assets.
biological assets of different type,
quality and kinds, etc.

Investments accounted for using equity method

The components of investments accounted for using the equity method at the reporting date were as
follows:

December 31, December 31,
: 2018 2017
Associlates h) 532.808 327,269

(i) Associates

In the first quarter of 2018, the Group subscribed the new shares contributed by Jiangsu CM /

Merit Agriculture Development Co., Ltd. for $349,970 thousand in cash, and therefore, has
significant influence on it. The equity shares held by the Group were not changed by the
abovementioned transaction,

Affiliates which are material to the Group consisted of the followings:

Main operating Proportion of Shareheolding

Nature of location/ Registered and Voting Rights
Relationship with Country of the December 31, December 31,
Name of Affiliates the Group Company 2018 2017
Hangsu CM / Merit Agriculture Developing hog China 49 % 49 %
Development Co., Ltd. (Note) farming technology
and trading

(Note) Since June 2017, Jiangsu CM/Merit Agriculture Development Co., Ltd. is no lenger
included in the consolidated financial statements. Please refer to note 6(i) of the
consolidated financial statements for other related information.

The following consolidated financial information of significant affiliates has been adjusted
according to individually prepared IFRS financial statements of these affiliates.

(Continued)
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The financial information of Jiangsu CM/Merit Agriculture Development Co., Ltd.:

December 31,

2018
Current assets 5 234,687
Non-current assets 1,374,095
Current liabilities (407,284)
Non-current liabilities (313.098)
Net assets b 888,400
Net assets attributable to non-controlling interests b 433,761

2018
Operating revenue $ 144,230
Loss from continuing operations $ (187,990)
Other comprehensive income -
Total comprehensive income $ (187.990)

2018
Shares of net assets of affiliates as of January 1, 2018 h 185,537
Loss attributable to the Group (92,115)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements

attributable to the Group (33.366)
Shares of net assets of affiliates as of December 31, 2018 60,056
Add: Issuance of shares in cash 349,970
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates 23,735

Carrying amount of equity of affiliate attributable to the Group $ 433,761

Summary of financial information for the individually insignificant investments in associates
accounted for using the equity method were as follows. The aforementioned financial
information was included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group:

December 31, December 31,

2018 2017
Total equity of the individually insignificant investments
in associates $ 99,047 327,269
2018 2017
Attributable to the Group:
Net loss $ (25,722) (166,787)
Other comprehensive income 49 9.263

Total comprehensive loss $ {25,673) (157,524)

(Continued)
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Pledge to secure

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the investments accounted for using equity method were
not pledged.

(h) Acquisition of non-controlling interests

(M)

(ii)

Chainwin Cayman

On January 19 and August 24, 2018, the Group subscribed the new shares contributed by

Chainwin Cayman for $346,297 thousand and $1,228,800 thousand in cash, respectively. Plus,
On January 22 and December 27, 2018, Chainwin Cayman repurchased its own shares

amounting to $2,913 thousand and $69,120 thousand, respectively, and cancelled afterwards;
therefore, the Group increased its ownership from 88.14% to 94.71%.

On July 1 and October 6, 2017, the Group subscribed the new shares contributed by Chainwin
Cayman for $154,149 thousand and $603,400 thousand in cash, respectively, increasing its
ownership from 43.75% to 62.25%, successively. On December 18, 2017, the Group acquired
the shares of Chainwin Cayman amounting to $569,983 thousand, increasing its ownership
from 62.25% to 88.14%.

Based on the afore mentioned transactions, the effects of the changes in shareholdings were as
follows:

2018 2017
Carrying amount of interest on acquisition b 1,537,267 1,168,186
Consideration paid {1.575.097) {1,327,532)
Retained earnings changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries $ (37,830) (159,346)

Jiangsu CM/Merit Agriculture Development Co., Ltd.

On September 26 and November 29, 2018, the Group subscribed the new shares contributed
by Jiangsu CM/Merit Agricuiture Development Co., Lid. for $58,007 thousand and $302,134
thousand, respectively, in cash, increasing its ownership from 60% to 90.79%, successively.

For the year ended December 31, 2017, there was no such transaction.

(Continued)
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Based on the aforementioned transactions, the effects of the changes in shareholdings were as

follows:

2018
Carrying amount of interest on acquisition b 357,398
Consideration paid {360,141)
Retained earnings changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries $ (2,743)

Losing control of subsidiary

The Group did not take part in the issuance of common stock for cash of Jiangsu CM / Merit
Agriculture Development Co., Ltd. at the second quarter of 2017. Therefore, the percentage of the
Group’ s ownership was reduced to 49%, and the Group lost its control over Jiangsu CM / Merit
Agricuiture Development Co., Ltd.

The related disposal loss which was $1,991 thousand was recognized as other gains and losses in
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

The carrying amount of assets and liabilities of Jiangsu CM / Merit Agriculture Development Co.,
Ltd. on May 31, 2017 was as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents hS 36,959
Inventories 9,176
Other current assets 14,539
Property, plant and equipment 358,353
Biological assets 104,745
Other non-current assets 21,452
Notes and accounts payable (189,337)
Other payables (8,540)
Other current liabilities (118)
Carrying amount of net assets $ 347,229
Acquisition of subsidiary

On July 12, 2018, the Group became the largest shareholder of PBL and obtained control over it
since then, increasing its ownership from 37.88% to 45.71%. PBL is mainly engaged in researching,
manufacturing and selling of high density chips and providing testing service.

From the acquisition date to December 31, 2018, PBL contributed revenue and net loss of $20,038
thousand and $63,847 thousand, respectively. If the acquisition had occurred on January 1, 2018, the
management estimates that consolidated revenue would have been $41,567 thousand and the
consolidated net loss would have been $117,589 thousand. The abovementioned influences do not
include adjustments on fair value.

(Continued)
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The acquisition-date fair value of major class of consideration transferred were as follows:

(@

(D)

Consideration transferred

The Group subscribed the new shares contributed by PBL and became the largest shareholder
of PBL, and obtained control over it since then. The Group expects PBL’s future generated
cash flow in accordance with the income approach that reflects the time value of investment
and the risk of the discounted cash flow, and evaluates the implied consideration transferred of
controlling over PBL.

The fair value measurement for the controlling interests has been categorized as a Level 3 fair
value based on the inputs to the valuation technique used. The key assumptions are as follows:

1)  The discount rate is based on the weighted-average cost of capital that computed by PBL
and its comparable capital structures and corresponded by the market value;

2)  Seven years of cash flows were included in the discounted cash flow model. Budgeted
annual carnings after tax, before interest, depreciation and amortization was based on
expectations of future outcomes taking into account past experience, adjusted for the
anticipated revenue growth.

The shares of PBL held by the Group were measured and the fair value per share was
$15 at the acquisition date.

The following table swmmarizes the recognized amounts of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the acquisition date:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 180,540
Notes and accounts receivable 5,651
Inventories 19,984
Other current assets 24,281
Property, plant and equipment (note 6(k})) 15,881
Intangible assets (note 6(m)) 842
Other non-current assets 11,240
Notes and accounts payable (2,522)
Other payables (13,156)
Other current liabilities (13.071)
Total identifiable net assets acquired $ 229,670

{Continued)
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Goodwill arising from the acquisition has been recognized as follows:

Consideration transferred 3 123,750
Fair value of pre-existing interest in Phalanx Biotech Group, Inc. 300,000
Non-controlling interest in the acquire (proportionate share of the fair

value of the identifiable net assets) 124,683
Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets (229.670)
Goodwill (note 6(m)) S 318.763

The Group re-measured the fair value of its existing equity interest in PBL before the business
combination, and the resulting gain of $273,432 thousand was recognized as “ gains on
disposals of investment”.

Goodwill mainly attributed to the profitability in the microarray services market and the know-
how of PLB work force.

(k) Property, plant and equipment

The cost and accumulated depreciation of the property, plant and equipment of the Group for the
years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

Buildings and Machinery and ~ Factory and Other Construction
Land structures equipment cquipment equipment in progress Total
Cost *

Balance as of Janvary 1, 2018 $ 2,546,334 2,153,117 17,777,113 4,255 435 363,944 649,245 27,745,388
Acquisitions through business
combinations - - 22,975 - 2,708 - 25,683
Additions - 16,608 1,549,416 84,393 163,532 1,243,747 3,057,696
Reclassification (Note 1) - 19,798 [,197,356 33,775 58,127 (146,002) 1,163,054
Disposals - (124) (404,674) (130,889) (79,577} - (615,264)
Effect of changes in foreign exchange

rates - (964) (188) (749) {924) {1,295) (4,120}
Balance as of December 31, 2018 § 2546534 2,188,435 20,141,998 4,241,965 507,810 1,745,695 31,372.437
Balance as of January 1, 2017 $ 2,546,534 2,130,540 15,179,485 4,050,349 285,457 359,902 24,552,267
Additions - 41,307 1,847,437 99,983 110,590 751,766 2,851,083
Reclassification (Note 2} - (18,646) 1,151,654 112,066 400 (105,387) 1,120,087
Disposals - - (381,463) (6,621) (28,134) - (416,218)
Effect of changes in consolidated

entities - - - - (4,028) (354,533) (358,561)
Effect of changes in foreign exchange

rates - (84) - (342) {341) (2,503) (3,210)
Balance as of December 31, 2017 § 2,546,534 2,153,117 17,777,113 4,255,435 363,944 649,245 27,745,388
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Buildings and Machinery and  Factory and Other Construction
Land structures equipment equipment equipment in progress Total
Accomulated depreciation -

Balance as of January 1, 2018 $ B 584,763 10,563,890 1,956,057 172,410 - 13,277,120
Acquisitions through business

combinations - - 8,267 - 1,535 - 9,802
Depreciation - 104,835 2,465,639 416,731 140,068 - 3,127,273
Reclassification - - - (1,228) 1,228 - -
Disposals - (124) (399,874) (130,885) (78,418) - (609,301}
Effect of changes in foreign exchange

rates - (138) (36) 291) (244) - (709
Balance as of December 31, 2018 S - 689,336 12,637,886 2,240,384 236,579 - 15,804,185
Balance as of January 1, 2017 $ - 485,288 9,058,857 1,560,930 98,214 - 11,203,289
Depreciation - 99,495 1,879,612 404,550 100,960 - 2,484,617
Reclassification - - 3,076 (3,076) - - -
Disposals - - (377,655) (6,290) (26,517) - (410,462)

Effect of changes in consalidated
enlities - - - - (208) - (208)

Effect of changes in foreign exchange

rates - (20) - &) (a9 - {116)
Balance as of December 31, 2017 s - 584,763 10,563,590 1,956,057 172,410 - 13,277,120
Carrying value *
Balance as of December 31,2018 5__ 2,346,534 _ 1,499,099 7,504,112 2,001,581 271231 1,745,695 15,568,252
Balance as of January 1, 2017 S 2546534 _ 1645252 6,120,628 2,489,419 187,243 359,902 _ 13,348,978
Balance as of December 31,2017 §__ 2,546,534 _ 1,568,354 7213223 2299378 191,534 649245 14,468,268
Note 1: Inventories, prepayments for business facilities, and other prepaid expenses were reclassified as property, plant and equipment.
Note 2: Inventories and prepayments for business facilities were reclassified as property, plant and equipment. Also, property, plant and
equipment were adjusted by using the constructional refund.
(iy Pledge to secure
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, property, plant and equipment were subject to a registered
debenture to secured bank loans and line of credit, the collateral for these long-term
borrowings was disclosed in note 8.
(ii) Property, plant and equipment under construction
The Group rented some pieces of land and entered into different agreements for the
construction of its new factories on the said lands. As of December 31, 2018, the Group has
partially paid the price of $375,281 thousand.
(iii) For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, capitalized interest expenses amounted to

$44,164 thousand and $21,357 thousand, respectively. The annual interest rates at which these
interest expenses were capitalized ranged from 1.14%~1.34% and 1.15%~1.56%, respectively.

(Continued)



@

54

Win Semiconductors Corp. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Investment property

The movements in investment property for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 were as
follows:

Buildings and
Land structures Total

Cost:

Balance as of January 1, 2018 b 963,127 529,952 1,493,079

Additions - - -

Balance as of December 31, 2018 $ 963,127 529,952 1,493,079

Balance as of January 1, 2017 $ 963,127 536,008 1,499,135

Additions - 1,258 1,258

Reclassification (Note) - (7.314) (7.314)

Balance as of December 31, 2017 $ 963,127 529,952 1,493,079
Accumulated depreciation:

Balance as of January 1, 2018 5 - 51,177 51,177

Depreciation - 20,374 20374

Balance as of December 31, 2018 $ - 71,551 71,551

Balance as of January 1, 2017 $ - 31,022 31,022

Depreciation - 20,155 20,155

Balance as of December 31, 2017 $ - 51,177 51,177
Carrying amount:

Balance at December 31, 2018 h 963,127 458,401 1,421,528

Balance at January 1, 2017 A 963,127 504,986 1.468.113

Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 963,127 478,775 1,441,902
Fair value:

Balance as of December 31, 2018 $ 1,632,183

Balance as of December 31, 2017 $ 1,576,821

Note: Investment property were adjusted by using the constructional refund.

When measuring the fair value of its investment property, the Group considered the present value of
net cash flows to be generated from leasing the property. The expected net cash flows were
discounted using the yield to reflect its specified inherit risk on the net cash flows. The inputs to the
valuation technique used for measuring fair value were categorized as a Level 2 fair value.

The yield applied to the net annual rentals to determine fair value of property for which current
prices in an active market were unavailable, was as follows:

Location 2018
Hsinchu 0.24% :

Taoyuan 1.41%

(Continued)
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As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, investment property were subject to a registered debenture to
secured bank loans and line of credit, the collateral for these long-term borrowings was disclosed in

note 8.

Intangible assets

(i) The movements in intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 were as

follows:
Computer
software and
Technical information Land use
know-how systems Goodwill rights Qthers Total
Cost:
Balance as of Janvary 1, 2018 5 46,051 119,718 123,327 31,448 26,059 346,603
Acquisition from business combinations - 1,802 318,763 - - 320,505
Additions - 53,679 - 1,765 3,853 59,297
Reclassification (Note) (46) 9,957 - - - 9,911
Disposals . (34,465) - - (4,944) {39,409}
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates - 180 3.978 (622) 660 4.196
Balance as of December 31, 2018 s 46,005 150,871 446,068 32,591 25,628 701,163
Balance as of Janvary 1, 2017 5 46,051 84,736 133,645 - 27,768 292200
Additions - 51,873 - 31,247 4,106 87,226
Reclassification (Note) - 70 - - - 70
Disposals - (16,9613 - . (4,104) {21,065)
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates - - {10.318) 201 (1,715 (11.828)
Balance as of December 31, 2017 § 46,051 119,718 123,327 31,448 26,058 340,603
Amortization:
Balance as of Janvary 1, 2018 3 27,494 52,510 - 53 8,702 88,759
Acquisitions through business combination - 960 - - - 60
Amortization 3,834 50,798 - 637 8,319 63,588
Reclassification {19) 19 - - - -
Disposals - (34,465) - - (4,944) (39,409)
Effect of changes in foreipn exchange rates - ] - (13} 265 32
Balance as of December 31, 2018 ] 31,309 69,882 - 677 12,342 114,210
Balance as of January 1, 2017 5 23,656 34,930 - - 4,075 62,661
Amortization 3,838 34,542 - 52 8,966 47,398
Disposals - (16,961) - - (4,104) (21,065)
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates - 4D - 1 (235) (235)
Balance as of December 31, 2017 5 27,454 52,510 - 53 8,702 88,759
Carrying value:
Balance as of December 31, 2018 8 14,696 80,989 446,068 31,914 13.286 586,953
Balance as of January 1, 2017 8 22,395 49,806 133.645 - 23.693 229,539
Balance as of December 31, 2017 3 18,557 67.208 123,327 31,395 17.357 257,844

Note: Other current asset were reclassified as intangible assets.
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(iiy Amortization expense recognized in profit or loss

For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the amortization expenses of intangible
assets were as follows:

2018 2017
Operating costs $ 18,131 15,164
Operating expenses 45,457 32,234
$ 63,588 47,398

(ili) Impairment testing for goodwill

1)

Chainwin Cayman

The goodwill of $132,278 thousand was derived from the acquisition of and the control
over Chainwin Cayman by the Group on August 19, 2016. The goodwill was mainly
attributed to the profitability of the hog farming in Mainland China. Chainwin Cayman is
regarded as a cash-generating units (the "CGU") to generate cash inflows that are
independent of those from others. Therefore, the amount on impairment loss of goodwill,
which was evaluated by using the value in use, exceeds the carrying amount of the net
asset.

Also, the Group estimated its operating revenue for certain periods based on the purchase
price allocation valuation report issued by the specialist, who was entrusted by the
Group. The preceding estimation was analyzed based on the financial forecasts from
2016 to 2021. The construction of certain factory farms of Chainwin Cayman had been
delayed, resulting in failure to increase the scale on farm raising. Therefore, the actual
operating revenue for the year of 2018 and 2017 decreased by 88% and 58%,
respectively, which were lower than the orginal forecast.

On December 31, 2018 and 2017, the recoverable amount determined by the value-in-use
for the cash-generating unit is higher than the carrying amount. Therefore, there is no
impairment loss should be recognized.

The total amount of goodwill has been allocated to the agriculture technology for the

Group’ s impairment testing purpose. The CGU are used as the minimum level for
investment return of goodwill supervised by the management.

The Group’s goodwill has been tested for impairment at the end of the annual reporting
period and the recoverable amount is determined based on the value-in-use. The key
assumption used in the estimation of the value-in-use of the CGU were as follows:

a)  The future cash flow was based on expectations of future operations, taking into
account past experience, adjusted for the anticipated revenue growth. Revenue
growth was projected taking into account the average growth levels experienced
over the past year, and the estimated sales volume and price growth for the next
five years. The assumptions were in line with the information obtained from
external local market who publish a statistical analysis on market trends.
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b) The assumption on before-tax discount rate is based on the weighted average cost
of capital. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the applied before-tax discount rate

of the recoverable amount of the units were 8.95% and 9.72%, respectively.
2) PLB

The goodwill of $318,763 thousand was derived from the Group became the largest
sharcholder of and obtained control over PBL on July 12, 2018. The goodwill was
mainly attributed to the profitability in microarray services market and the know-how of
PLB work force. PBL is regarded as a CGU to generate cash inflows that are independent
of those from others. Therefore, the amount on impairment loss of goodwill, which was
evaluated by using the value in use, exceeds the carrying amount of the net asset.

On December 31, 2018, the recoverable amount determined by the value-in-use for the
cash-generating unit is higher than the carrying amount. Therefore, there is no
impairment loss should be recognized.

The total amount of goodwill has been allocated to the gene chip testing service for the
Group’ s impairment testing purpose. The CGU are used as the minimum level for
investment return of goodwill supervised by the management.

The Group’s goodwill has been tested for impairment at the end of the annual reporting
period and the recoverable amount is determined based on the value-in-use. The key
assumption used in the estimation of the value-in-use of the CGU were as follows:

a) The future cash flow was based on expectations of future operations, taking into
account past experience, adjusted for the anticipated revenue growth. Revenue
growth was projected taking into account the average growth levels experienced
over the past year, and the estimated sales volume and price growth for the next
seven years.

b) The assumption on before-tax discount rate is based on the weighted average cost
of capital. As of December 31, 2018, the applied before-tax discount rate of the

recoverable amount of the units was 9.49%.

(iv) As of December 31,2018 and 2017, the intangible assets were not pledged.
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{n) Other current assets and other non-current assets

December 31, December 31,

2018 2017

Other receivables from metal recycling $ 108,738 159,618
Tax refund receivables 70,603 123,967
Long-term prepaid rent 3,150 31,153
Prepayment for purchases and prepaid expenses 01,062 89,079
Restricted assets 41,799 25,655
Refundable deposits 46,556 51,748
Other receivables 16,550 14,415
Others 54,624 15,085

$ 433,082 510,720

Long-term prepaid rent, which the Group signed agreements with agriculture developing committees
and other institutions in China to acquire lands for lease and for hog farming purpose. The durations
of the agreements are 5~30 years. The payments for rental were made in accordance with the signed

agreements. The Group entered into land lease agreements amounting to RMB 78,366 thousand.
(o) Short-term borrowings

December 31, December 31,

2018 2017
Unsecured short-term borrowings 5 - -
Unused bank credit lines for short-term borrowings b 2,190.784 2,361,382
Unused bank credit lines for short-term and long-term
borrowings $ 3,068.629 510,778
Annual interest rate = 1.997%~2.00%

(p) Long-term borrowings

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Unsecured long-term borrowings (settled in NTD) b3 4,230,000 5,578,000
Secured long-term borrowings (setiled in NTD) 1,572,600 679,536
Less: long-term liabilities, current portion - {352.056)
Total 5 5,802,600 5.905.480
Unused bank credit lines for long-term borrowings $ 5,779.000 2.093.000
1.08%~1.40% 1.23%~1.60%

Annual interest rate

Expiry date 2020/3/31~2025/8/16 2018/2/1~2620/8/31

(Continued)
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As of December 31, 2018, the remaining balances of the borrowing due were as follows:

Year due Amount
QOctober 1, 2020~December 31, 2020 $ 1,558,800
October 1, 2021~December 31, 2021 2,495,600
QOctober 1, 2022 and after 1,748,200
s 5,802,600
(i) The unused bank credit lines for short-term and long-term borrowings at the reporting date
were disclosed in note 6(0).
(i) The collateral for these long-term borrowings was disclosed in note 8.
Operating lease
(i) Lease-lessor
The Group leased its investment property under operating lease, which was disclosed in note
6(1).
For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the rental income recognized in other
income amounting to $79,426 thousand and $84,383 thousand, respectively.
(ii) Lease-lessee

The Group leases a number of factories, offices, parking lots and lands etc. under operating
lease.

The leases typically run for a period of 1 to 30 years. For the years ended December 31, 2018

and 2017, the rent expenses amounted to $70,989 thousand and $51,158 thousand,
respectively, which were recorded as operating costs and operating expenses.

Employee benefits

(i)

Defined benefit plans

Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation at present value and plan asset at fair value were
as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
Present value of the defined benefit obligations $ 141,119 102,900
Fair value of plan assets (42,653) (40.312)
Net defined benefit liabilities (Note) S 98,466 62,588

{(Note) Recognized liabilities for defined benefit obligations were recognized as other non-current liabilities.
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- The Group makes defined benefit plan contributions to the pension fund account in the Bank
of Taiwan that provides pensions for employees upon retirement. Plans (covered by the Labor
Standards Law) entitle a retired employee to receive an annual payment based on years of
service and average salary prior to six months of retirement.

1)  Composition of plan assets

The Group set aside pension funds in accordance with the legislation from the Ministry
of Labor and managed by the Bureau of Labor Founds. The annual budget for the
allocation of the minimum income cannot be lower than the income calculated based on
the interest rate of the banks’ two-year time deposit in accordance with the legislation
“Management and Utilization of the Labor Pension Funds”.

The Group’s labor pension reserve account balance in the Bank of Taiwan amounted to

$42,653 thousand as of December 31, 2018. The utilization of the labor pension fund
assets includes the asset allocation and the yield of the fund. Please refer to the website
of Bureau of Labor Founds, Ministry of Labor.

2)  The movements in present value of the defined benefit obligations

For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, movements in the present value of the
defined benefit obligations for the Group were as follows:

2018 2017

Defined benefit obligations as of January 1 $ 102,900 100,272
Current service costs and interest cost 3,205 2,980
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit

liability {asset):

— Actuarial (gains) losses arising from

financial assumption 26,107 - (3,234

— Experience adjustments 8.907 2.882

Defined benefit obligations as of December 31 § 141,119 102,900

3) The movements in fair value of the defined benefit plan assets

For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, movements in the fair value of the
plan assets were as follows:

2018 2017

Fair value of plan assets as of January 1 $ 40,312 38,844
Interest revenue 647 533
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit

liability (asset):

— Return on plan assets (excluding the

interest revenue) 963 (151)

Amounts contributed to plan 731 1,086
Fair value of plan assets as of December 31 h 42,653 40,312
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The movement in effect of plan asset ceiling

For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, there were no changes in the effect of
plan asset ceiling.

The expenses recognized in profit or losses

For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the expenses recognized in profit or
losses for the Group were as follows:

2018 2017
Current service costs $ 1,579 1,633
Net interest expense of net defined benefit
liabilities (assets) 979 814
$ 2,558 2,447
2018 2017
Administrative expenses 8 2,558 2.447

The remeasurements of the net defined benefit liabilities (assets) recognized in other
comprehensive income

For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the remeasurements of the net defined
benefit liabilities (assets) recognized in other comprehensive income were as follows:

2018 2017
Balance as of January! $ 30,666 30,867
Recognized in the current period 34.051 (201)
Balance as of December 31 $ 64,717 30,666

Actuarial assumptions

At the end of the reporting date, the principal actuarial assumptions were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
Discount rate 1.375 % 1.625 %
Future salary rate increases 4.500 % 3.000 %

The Group expects to make contributions of $235 thousand to the defined benefit plans
in the next year starting from December 31, 2018. The weighted average duration of the
defined benefit plans is 16.94 years.

(Continued)
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8)  Sensitivity analysis

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the changes in main actuarial assumptions might
have an impact on the present value of the defined benefit obligation as follows:

Influences of defined henefit obligations
Increase by 0.25% Decrease by 0.25%

Balance as of December 31, 2018

Discount rate $ (4,288) 4,475
Future salary rate increases 4,264 (4,124)
Balance as of December 31, 2017

Discount rate 3 (3,079) 3,234
Future salary rate increases 3,131 (3,005)

There is no change in other assumptions when performing the above-mentioned
sensitivity analysis. In practice, assumptions may be interactive with each other. The
method used on sensitivity analysis is consistent with the calculation on the net pension
liabilities.

There is no change in the method and assumptions used in the preparation of sensitivity
analysis for 2018 and 2017.

Defined contribution plans

The Group set aside 6% of the contribution rate of the employee’s monthly wages to the Labor
Pension personal account of the Bureau of Labor Insurance in accordance with the provisions
of the Labor Pension Act. The Group set aside a fixed amount to the Bureau of Labor
Insurance without the payment of additional legal or constructive obligations.

The Group set aside $93,963 thousand and $75,907 thousand, respectively, of the pension
under the pension plan costs to the Bureau of Labor Insurance for the years ended December
31,2018 and 2017.

The Group’ s Mainland China subsidiaries have a defined contribution plan. Monthly
contributions to an independent fund administered by the government in accordance with the
pension regulations in the People’s Republic of China (PRC) are based on certain percentage
of employees’ monthly salaries and wages. Other than the monthly contributions, the Group
has no further obligations. For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group
recognized the pension costs in accordance with the pension regulations and amounted to

$3,397 thousand and $1,767 thousand, respectively.

Income tax

The amendments to the “Income Tax Act” was passed by the office of the President of the Republic
of China (Taiwan) on February 7, 2018, and the corporate income tax rate has increased from 17%
to 20% from FY 2018.
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(i) Income tax expense

The amount of income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 were as

follows:
2018 2017

Current tax expense (benefit)

Current period $ 764,816 815,583

Adjustment for prior periods (11.894) (80)
Subtotal 752,922 815.503
Deferred tax expense (benefit)

Origination and reversal of temporary differences (77,567) (2,119)

Adjustment in tax rate (6.794) -
Subtotal (84.361) (2.119)
Income tax expense $ 668,561 813,384

The amount of income tax (expense) benefit recognized in other comprehensive income for the
years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

2018 2017

Components of other comprehensive income that will
not be classified to profit or loss:

The remeasurements of defined benefit pians $ 7,730 34)

Reconciliation of income tax expenses (benefit) and profit before tax were as follows:

2018 2017

Profit before tax b 3,734,623 4,528,679
Estimated income tax calculated using the

Company's domestic tax rate $ 746,924 769,875
Adjustment in tax rate (6,794) -
Tax-exempt income (16,660) (40,557)
Investment tax credits (61,550) (48,441)
Change in unrecognized deductible temporary 33,152 -

differences
Change in provision in prior periods (11,894) (80)
10% surtax on unappropriated earnings 42,928 97,848
Others (57.545) 34,739

5 668,561 813.384
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Unrecognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

64

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the following items:

December 31,
2018

December 31,
2017

Tax effect of deductible temporary differences $

The carry forward of unused tax losses

S 210,193

The R.O.C. Income Tax Act allows net losses, as assessed by the tax authorities, to offset
taxable income over a period of ten years for local tax reporting purposes. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognized in respect of these items because it is not probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the Group can utilize the benefits

therefrom.

As of December 31, 2018, the information of the Group's unutilized business losses for
which no deferred tax assets were recognized are as follows:

Year of loss Unutilized business loss Expiry date
2009 $ 95,967 2019
2010 48,013 2020
2011 74,383 2021
2012 44,302 2022
2013 49,138 2023
2014 53,221 2024
2015 50,740 2025
2016 77,243 2026
2017 142,749 2027
2018 155.289 2028

S 791,045

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, there were no deferred tax liabilities have not been

recognized.
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2)  Changes in the amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the years ended December
31, 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

Difference in
depreciation
Allowance for expense between
obsolete financial and tax
inventories ntethod Others Total
Deferred tax assefs:
Balance as of January 1, 2018 $ 22,992 23,256 30,952 77,200
Recognized in profit or loss 9,482 35,705 5,685 50,872
Recognized in other comprehensive income - - 7.730 7.730
Balance as of December 31, 2018 $ 32.474 58.961 44,367 135,802
Balance as of January 1, 2017 3 32,951 13,949 28,454 ’ 75,354
Recognized in profit or loss (9,959) 9,307 2,532 1,880
Recognized in other comprehensive income - - (34 (34)
Balance as of December 31, 2017 ) 22,992 23,256 30,952 77.200
Unrealized
investment income
recognized under Unrealized
equity method cxchange rate Total
Deferred tax liabilities:
Balance as of January 1, 2018 by 33,489 - 33,489
Recognized in profit or loss (33.489) - (33.489)
Balance as of December 31, 2018 h) - - -
Balance as of January 1, 2017 $ 31,718 2,010 33,728
Recognized in profit or loss 1,771 {2.010) (239
Balance as of December 31, 2017 S 33.489 - 33,489

Examination and approval

The Company’s corporate income tax returns for all the years through 2016 were assessed and
approved by the tax authorities National Taxation Bureau of the Northern Area, Ministry of
Finance.

(t) Capital and other equity

(¥

Ordinary share issuance

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company’ s authorized share capital consisted of
10,000,000 thousand shares of ordinary share, with $10 dollars par value per share, of which

423,814 thousand shares, and 422,666 thousand shares, respectively, were issued and
outstanding. The Company has reserved $1,000,000 thousand for employee stock options.

(Continued)
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Reconciliations of shares outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017:

Ordinary share (in thousands)

2018 2017
Balance as of January 1 422,666 407,666
Issue of shares - 20,000
Retirement of treasury share - ' (5,000)
Restricted shares of stock issued for employees 1.148 -
Balance as of December 31 423.814 422.666

A resolution was passed during the general meeting of shareholders held on June 16, 2017 for
the issuance of ordinary shares for cash within a year under private placement, a resolution was
passed during the board meeting held on December 8, 2017 for the issuance of $20,000
thousand ordinary shares, with subscription price $277 per share, amounting to $5,540,000
thousand, with December 22, 2017 as the record date of capital increase. The relevant statutory
registration procedures have since been completed.

The aforementioned private placement of ordinary shares and the transfer of any subsequently
obtained bonus shares would be subject to section 43-8 requirements under the Securities and
Exchange Act. The Company can only apply for these shares to be traded publicly after a
three-year period has elapsed from the delivery date of the private placement securities, and
after applying for a public offering with the Financial Supervisory Commission.

On June 15, 2018, the shareholders’ meeting approved a resolution to issue 1,700 thousand
new restricted employee shares, at $10 dollars par value per share, amounting to $17,000
thousand, to full-time regular employees who meet specific requirements. The above
transaction had been approved by the Financial Supervisory Commission. In accordance with
the resolution of Board of Directors meeting held on September 14, 2018, the Company issued

1,148 thousand shares, at $10 dollars par value per share, amounting to $11,480 thousand.
The aforementioned stock issuance had been registered with the government authorities.

As of December 31, 2017, the Company issued 11,121 thousand units of Global Depositary
Receipts (GDRs), representing 55,605 thousand ordinary shares of stock of the Company.

As of December 31, 2018, the Company has terminated the GDRs.

(Continued)
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Capital surplus
Balance of capital surplus at the reporting date were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2018 2017
Additional paid-in capital $ 9,031,035 9,031,035
Changes in equity of associates and joint ventures accounted for
using equity method 635 21,163
Employee stock options 3,810 698
Restricted shares of stock issued for employees 163.877 -
S 9,199,357 9,052,896

In accordance with the Company Act, realized capital reserves can only be reclassified as share
capital or be distributed as cash dividends after offsetting against losses. The aforementioned
capital reserves include share premiums and donation gains. In accordance with the
Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities Issuers, the actual
amount of capital reserves to be reclassified under share capital shall not exceed 10% of the
actual share capital amount.

Retained earnings

The Company’s Articles of Incorporation stipulate that 10% of the balance of annual income
or earnings after deducting accumulated deficit, if any, must be set aside as a legal reserve and
a special capital reserve is likewise appropriated or the annual income or earnings are retained
in accordance with the relevant laws or regulations or as requested by the authorities.
Otherwise, the distribution of remaining balance of the earnings should be further proposed by
the Board of Directors and resolved by the shareholders’ meeting. And the cash dividends
should not lower than 10% of the total stockholders® dividends.

As the Company is a technology and capital-intensive enterprise and is in its growth phase, it
has adopted a more prudent approach in appropriating its remaining earnings as its dividend
policy in order to sustain its long-term capital needs and thereby maintain continuous
development and steady growth.

1)  Legal reserve

According to the amended Company Act which was announced in January 2012, 10% of
net income should be set aside as statutory earnings reserve, until it equals the share
capital. If the Company experienced profit for the year, the meeting of shareholders shall
decide on the distribution of the legal reserve either by new shares or by cash of up to
25% of the actual share capital.
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2)  Special reverse

In accordance with Permit No. 1010012865 issued by the FSC on April 6, 2012, a
portion of current period earnings and undistributed prior period earnings shall be
reclassified as a special earnings reserve during earnings distribution. The amount to be
reclassified should be equal to the total net reduction of current period of other
shareholders® equity resulting from the IFRS first-time adoption. Similarly, a portion of
undistributed prior period earnings shall be reclassified as a special earnings reserve (and
does not qualify for earnings distribution) to account for cumulative changes to other
shareholders® equity pertaining to prior periods due to the IFRS first time adoption.
Amounts of subsequent reversals pertaining to the net reduction of other shareholders’
equity shall qualify for additional distributions.

3)  Appropriations of earnings

The appropriations of earnings for 2017 and 2016 had been approved in shareholders’
meetings held on June 15, 2018 and June 16, 2017, respectively. The dividends were as
follows:

2017 2616
Cash dividends S 2,958,665 1,811,999

The above-mentioned appropriations of earning for 2017 and 2016 were consistent with
the resolutions of the meeting of the Board of Directors.

The related information mentioned above can be found on websites such as the Market
Observation Post System.

(iv) Treasury shares

In 2017, in accordance with the requirements under article 28-2 of the Securities and Exchange
Act, the Company repurchased 1,080 thousand shares as treasury shares in order to protect the
Company’ s integrity and shareholders’ equity. As of December 31, 2017, all the shares
repurchased by the Company have been cancelled. There was no transaction in 2018.

In accordance with Securities and Exchange Act requirements as stated above, the number of
shares repurchased should not exceed 10 percent of the number of common shares issued.
Also, the total amount of the repurchased shares should not exceed the sum of retained
earnings, paid-in capital in excess of par value and other realized capital surplus. The shares
and dollar amount that may be repurchased do not exceed the upper limit, which were
calculated based on the audited or reviewed financial reports by a certified accountant, for the
latest accounting period prior to a resolution of a meeting of the Board of Directors.

In accordance with the requirements of Securities and Exchange Act, treasury shares held by
the Company should not be pledged, and do not hold any shareholder rights before their
transfer.
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(v) Other equity interests, net of tax

Unrealized
gains {losses) on

69

Exchange financial assets Unrealized Other Unearned
differences on at fair value gains (losses) on  compensation
translation of through other available-for- for restricted

foreign financial comprchensive  sale financial shares of
statements income Assets employces
Balance as of January 1, 2018 b (100,208) - 1,568,176 -
Effects of retrospective application and
retrospective restatement - 1.401.839 (1.568.176) -
Balances at the beginning after adjusted (100,208) 1,401,839 - -
Foreign currency differences (net of tax):
The Group 95,350 - - -
Associates (29,921) - - -
Disposal of investments accounted for using
equity method (1,421) - - -
Unrealized gain (losses) on equity
instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (net of tax) - (352,044) - -
Cumulative gains (Josses) reclassified to
retained earnings on disposal of
investments in equity instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive
income (net of tax) - (91,405) - -
Unearned compensation for restricted shares
of employees - - - (158.308)
Balance as of December 31, 2018 3 (36.200) 958,390 - (158,308)

Balance as of January 1, 2017

Foreign currency differences (net of tax):
The Group
Associates

Changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets (net of tax)

Adjustments in reclassification of the impairment
of available-for-sale financial assets (net of tax)

Cumulative gains (losses) reclassified to profit or
loss upon disposal of available-for-sale financial
assets (net of tax)

Other comprehensive income reclassified to profit
or loss upon disposal of foreign operations

Balance as of December 31, 2017

Exchange differences
on translation of
foreign financial

Unrealized gains

(losses) on available-

for-sale financial

statements assets
b 1,719 760,178
(110,108) -
6,190 -
- 973,961
- (7,908)
- (158,055)
1.991 -
g (100,208} 1,568,176
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(u) Share-based payment

@

(i)

The Company insurance restricted shares of stock for employee

On June 15, 2018, the shareholders’ meeting approved a resolution to issue 1,700 thousand
new restricted employee shares to full-time regular employees who meet specific requirements.
The above transaction had been approved by the Financial Supervisory Commission. The
Company decided that the grant date was set on August 22, 2018 and in accordance with the
resolution of Board of Directors meeting held on September 14, 2018, the Company issued
1,148 thousand shares (the date of capital increase was set on September 14, 2018), with the

fair-value on grant date amounting to $175,357 thousand.

As of December 31, 2018, there were 1,148 thousand outstanding shares.

Those employees with the restricted stock awards (RSA) are entitled to purchase shares
without cost under the conditions that these employees will continue to provide service to the
Company for at least 3 years (from the grant date), and meet certain requirement. Based on the
Company’ s requirements, the restricted employee shares should be fully vested in the third
year after the grant date. These shares shall not be sold, pledged, transferred, gifted, or
disposed by any other means to third parties during the custody period. The voting rights of
these shareholders need not be executed by the custodian, and will act based on law and
regulations, The cash and stock dividends distributed during the custody period will be granted
to the employees. If the shares remain unvested after the vesting period, the Company will
redeem all the unvested shares, and cancel the shares thereafter.

For the years ended December 31, 2018, the Company recognized the compensation cost of
$17,049 thousand for the aforementioned RSA. There was no transaction in 2017.

The subsidiary of PBL of employee stock option plans (ESOPs)

2018 ESOPs
Grant date 2018.4.20
Number of options granted (unit) 5,560
Number of common shares eligible (share) 1,000
Contract period 2018.4.20~2026.4.19
Vesting period 2018.4.20~2021.4.19
Recipients Employees of PBL
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PBL used the Black-Scholes Model in measuring the fair value of its employee stock option at
the date of grant. The main inputs to the valuation model were as follows:

2018 employee 2018 employee 2018 employee

stock options stock options stock options
exercise in the  exercise in the exercise in the
15t year 204 year 3rd year

Fair value at grant date (dollars) § 393 $ 4.13 $ 432
Share price at grant date (dollars) $ 11.29 $ 11.29 $ 11.29
Exercise price (dollars) $ 11 $ 11 $ 1
Expected volatility 40% 40% 40%
Expected life 4.5 years 5 years 5.5 years
Risk-free interest rate 0.70% 0.74% 0.77%

Details of the employee stock options were as follows:

December 31, 2018
Weighted average Number of
exercise price options
(expressed in (expressed in
dollars) thousands)
QOutstanding at January 1 $ - -
Granted during the year 11 5.560
QOutstanding at December 31 il 5.560

Exercisable at December 31 - -

From acquisition date to December 31, 2018, PLB recognized the compensation cost of $6,807
thousand for the aforementioned ESOPs. There was no transaction for the years ended
December 31, 2017,

(v) Earnings per share (“EPS”)

For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company’s earnings per share were calculated

as follows:
2018 2017
Basic earnings per share :
Profit belonging to common shareholders L] 3,124,454 3,764,200
Weighted average number of outstanding shares of common stock (in
thousands) 422,666 403,214
Basic earnings per share (in dollars) s 7.39 9.34
Diluted earnings per share :
Profit belonging to common sharcholders b 3,124,454 3,764,200
Weighted average number of outstanding shares of common stock (in
thousands) 422,666 403,214
Effect of potentially dilutive common stock
Employee remuneration (in thousands) 2.381 1.510
Weighted average number of common stock (diluted) (in thousands) 425,047 404,724
Diluted earnings per share (in dollars) b} 7.35 9.30
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For the years ended December 2018, the new restricted employee shares have anti-diluted effect,
therefore, the new restricted employee shares were not included in the calculation of effect on

potentially diluted common stock.
Revenue from contracts with customers

(i) Disaggregation of revenue

2018
Segment- Segment-
Foundry Other Total
Primary geographical markets:
Asia b 10,011,798 357,206 10,369,004
Americas 4,169,406 - 4,169,406
Taiwan 2,111,067 20,726 2,131,793
Europe 640,513 - 640.513
$ 16,932,784 377,932 17,310,716
Main product / services lines:
Foundry $ 16,932,330 - 16,932,330
Other 454 377.932 378,386
) 16,932,784 377,932 17,310,716
(ii) Balance of contracts
December 31, January 1,
2018 2018
Notes receivable $ 459 -
Accounts receivable 1,424,223 1,595,442
Less: allowance doubtful for accounts (2317 (2.086)
h) 1.422,365 1,593.356
Contract liabilities (Note) $ 112,694 99.514

(Note) Contract liabilities are included in other current liabilities.

For details of accounts receivable and allowance for impairment, please refer to note 6(c).

The major change in the balance of contract liabilities is the difference between the time frame in the
performance obligation to be satisfied and the payment to be received. The amount of revenue
recognized for the year ended December 31, 2018 that was included in the contract liabilities

balance at the beginning of the period was $84,264 thousand.

(Continued)



73

Win Semiconductors Corp. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(x) Employees’, directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration

According to the Company’ s Article of Incorporation, if there is any net profit after closing of a
fiscal year, it shall be allocated according to the following principles:

(i) Employee remuneration: not less than 5% but no more than 10% and shall be determined and
pursuant to Employee Bonus Procedure of the Company. In addition, employee’s profit sharing
remuneration shall be distributed in the form of shares or cash. Stock-type employee
remuneration may be distributed to qualified employees of affiliates of the Company.

(i) Remuneration of Directors and Supervisors: no more than 3%.

However, if there are any accumulated losses of the Company, the Company shall pre-reserve the
amount to offset the loss. The distribution of employees® profit sharing bonus and remuneration of
Directors and Supervisors shall follow the special resolution by Board of Directors, and report it to
the shareholders’ meeting.

For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company estimated its employees’ and
directors’and supervisors’ remuneration as follows:

2018 2017
Employee remuneration $ 255,600 308,400
Directors’ remuneration 74.200 29.500
$ 329,800 397,900

The amount of employee remuneration, and directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration were estimated
based on profit before tax, net of the amount of the remuneration, and multiplied by the rule of
Company’s Article of Incorporation. The above remuneration were included in the operating costs
and operating expenses of the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.

There was no difference between the actual distributed amounts as determined by the Board of
Directors and those recognized in the Company’s parent-company-only financial statements of the
years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.

The related information mentioned above can be found on websites such as the Market Observation
Post System.
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(y) Non-operating income and expenses

@

(ii)

(i)

Other income

The details of other incomes for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

2018 2017
Interest income:
Interest income from bank deposits $ 57,334 21,221
Interest income from financial assets at amortized
cost 697 -
Interest income from investments in debt instrument
without active market - 1,143
Other interest income 1,033 3.757
Total interest income 59,064 26,121
Dividend income 97,268 82,659
Rent income 89,386 93.960
$ 245,718 202,740

Other gains and losses

The details of other gains and losses for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 were as
follows:

2018 2017

Gain (losses) on disposals of property, plant and

equipment h 2,210 (1,809)
Gains on disposals of investments 286,391 158,112
Foreign exchange gains (losses) 129,261 (174,496)
Losses on financiai assets or liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss (32,394) (34,768)
Others : 30,366 22.868

$ 415,834 (30,093)

Finance costs

The details of finance costs for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

2018 2017
Interest expenses $ 22,199 54,687
Other finance costs 257 259
$ 22.456 54,946
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{(z) Financial instruments

()

Credit risk

1}  Exposure of credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit risk is mainly from carrying amount of financial assets.

2) Disclosures about concentrations of risk
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group’s accounts receivable were concentrated
on 4 and 3 customers, respectively, whose accounts represented 66% and 61% of the
total accounts receivable, respectively. In order to reduce the credit risk on these
accounts receivable, the Group continues to evaluate the financial status of these
customers and request for collaterals when necessary.

3) Receivables and debt securities

For information on credit risk regarding notes and accounts receivable, please refers to
note 6(c). Other financial assets measured at amortized cost include other receivables and
the financial assets at amortized cost (which were classified as investments in debt
instrument without active market as of December 31, 2017.) For related information of
investment and impairment, please refers to notes 6(b) and 6(d).

All of these financial assets are considerated to have low risk, and thus, the impairment
provision recognized during the periokd was limied 12 months expected losses.

(ii) Liquidity risk

The following were the contractual maturities of financial liabilities:

Carrying  Contractual  Within Over 5
amount cash flows 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years YEArs

As of December 31, 2018

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Secured bank loans 3 1,572,600 1,661,678 21,294 124,638 997,014 518,732
Unsecured bank loans 4,230,000 4,350,337 48,837 1,494,684 2,560,556 246,260
Notes and accounts payable 1,093,074 1,093,074 1,093,074 - - -
Other payables 880,314 880,314 880,314 - - -
Guarantee deposits received 143.068 143.068 17.487 9.431 116.150 -

$ 7919056 8.128.471 2.061,006 1.628,753 3,673,720 764,992

As of December 31, 2017

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Secured bank loans ¥ 679,536 689,099 308,797 304,758 75,544 -
Unsecured bank loans 5,578,000 5,725,263 119,553 1,921,648 3,684,062 -
Accounts payable 1,698,485 1,698,485 1,698,485 - - -
Other payables 1,254,346 1,254,346 1,254,346 - - -
Guarantee deposits received 143,685 143.685 4.867 19,387 9.431 110,000

$_ 9.354.052 9,510,878 3.386,048 2,245,793 3,769,037 110.000
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The Group did not expect that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur
significantly earlier or at significantly different amounts.

(iii) Currency risk

1)  Exposure to currency risk
The Group’s significant exposure to foreign currency risk were as follows:
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Foreign Exchange Foreign Exchange
currency rate NTS currency rate NTS
Financial assets

Monetary items
UsD $ 191,938 30,72 5,896,330 140,645 29.76 4,185,590
EUR 172 35.20 6,038 531 33.57 18,902
JPY 3,014 0.2782 842 394,637 0.2642 104,265
GBP 11 38.88 428 12 40.11 481
HKD 62 3.92 241 62 3.81 237
RMB 8.884 4.47 39,713 - - .-

$__ 5943,592 $_ 4,309475
Non-monetary
items
USD $ 6,312 3072 % 193,828 3,941 29.76 102,944
RMB 97,324 4.47 433,761 40,972 4.57 185.537

$ 627,589 by 288,481

Financial liabilities

Monetary items
usp $ 17,126 30.72 526,123 36,711 29.76 1,092,511
EUR 509 35.20 17,922 680 35.57 24,170
JPY 328,936 0.2782 91,510 606,057 0.2642 160,121
RMB 37 4.47 167 - - -

$ 635,722 S 1.276.802

2)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises from the translation of the foreign
currency exchange gains and losses on cash and cash equivalents, notes and accounts
receivable, other receivables, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (which
were classified as available-for-sale financial assets on December 31, 2017), notes and
accounts payable and other payables that are denominated in foreign currency. A
strengthening (weakening) 5 % of appreciation (depreciation) of the NTD against the
USD, EUR, GBP, JPY, HKD, and the RMB etc. for the years ended December 31, 2018
and 2017 would have increased (decreased) the net profit after tax by $220,129 thousand
and $125,856 thousand, respectively, and other comprehensive income would have

increased (decreased) by $0 thousand and $16,773 thousand, respectively. The analysis
assumes that all other variables remain constant.
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3)  Exchange gains or losses

Since the Group has many kinds of functional currency, the information on foreign
exchange gains (losses) on monetary items is disclosed by total amount. For the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, foreign exchange gains (losses) (including realized
and unrealized portions) amounted to $129,261 thousand and $(174,496) thousand,
respectively.

(iv) Interest rate risk

Please refer to the attached note for the liquidity risk and the Group’s interest rate exposure to
its financial liabilities.

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the risk exposure to interest rates on the non-
derivatives financial instruments on the reporting date. For variable rate instruments, the
sensitivity analysis assumes the variable rate liabilities are outstanding for the whole year on
the reporting date.

If the interest rate increases (decreases) by 0.5%, the Group’s net profit after tax would have
increased (decreased) by $11,299 thousand and $12,933 thousand for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, all other variable factors that remain constant. This

is mainly due to the Group’s berrowing in floating rates.
(v) Fairvalue
1)  Accounting classifications and fair values

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income (available-for-sale financial assets) are
measured on a recurring basis. The carrying amount and fair value of the Group’s
financial assets and liabilities, including the information on fair value hierarchy were as
follows; however, except as described in the following paragraphs, for financial
instruments not measured at fair value whose carrying amount is reasonably close to the
fair value, and for equity investments that has no quoted prices in the active markets and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, disclosure of fair value information is not

required.
December 31, 2018
Fair value
Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Stocks listed on domestic matkets 5 96,955 96,955 - - 96,955
Funds and investment 6,308 6,308 - - 6,308
Private fund 722,405 - - 722405 722,405
Subtotal s 825,668 103.263 = 722,405 825,668
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Stocks listed on domestic and foreign markets 3 1,791,646 1,791,646 - - 1,791,646
Non-public stocks 564.486 - - 364,486 564.486
Subtotal S 2,356,132 1,791,646 - 564,486 1,356,132
Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents (Note) 5 5,462,173 - - - -
Financial assets at amoriized cost (Note) 29,900 - - - -
Notes and accounts receivable (Note) 1,422,365 - - - -
Other receivables (Note) 125,288 - - - -
Subtotal s 7,039,726 - - = -
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Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Bank loans (Note)
Notes and accounts payable (Note)
Other payables (Note)
Guarantee deposits received (Note)
Subtotal

Financial assets at Tair value theough profit or loss
Stocks listed on domestic markets
Funds and investment
Subtotal
Available-for-sale financial assets
Stocks listed on domestic and foreign markets
Non-public stocks
Private fund
Subtotal
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents (Note)
Financial assets at cost (Note)
Investments in debt instrument without active market (Note)
Accounts receivable (Note)
Other receivables (Note)
Subtotal
Finaneial liabilities ineasured at amoriized cost
Bank loan (Note)
Accounts payable {Note)
Other payables (Note)
Guarantee deposits received (Note}
Subtotal

Note: The information on fair value is not disclosed since the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

December 31, 2018
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Carrying value

Fair value

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Taotal

$

5,802,600
1,093,074
880,314
143,068

3

7,919,056

December 31, 2017

Carrying value

Fair value

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

136,530
1,164,777

136,530
1,164,777

136,530
1,164,777

1,301,307

1,301,307

1,301,307

2,234,963
607,450
612,978

2,234,963

607,490
612,978

2,234,963
607,490
612,978

3,455,431

2,234,963

1,220,468

3,455,431

7,849,123
22,915
62,200

1,551,390

356,282

9,841,910

6,257,536
1,698,485
1,254,346

143,685

§

9,354,052

2)  Valuation techniques of financial instrument not valued at fair value

The valuation techniques of the Group’s financial instruments not valued at fair value by
using the methods and assumptions are as follows:

» Financial assets measured at amortized cost (investments in debt instrument without
active market and financial asset at amortized cost) and financial liabilities measured

at amortized cost

If recent transaction prices or market maker quotes are available, the fair value is based
on such information. If there is no quoted market price available, the fair value is
determined by using valuation techniques and calculated as the present value of the

estimated cash flows.
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Valuation techniques of financial instruments valued at fair value

a)

Non-derivative instruments

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in an active market is based
on the quoted market prices. The quotation, which is published by the main
exchange center or that which was deemed to be a public bond by the Treasury
Bureau of Central Bank, is included in the fair value of the listed securities
instruments and the debt instruments in active markets with open bid.

A financial instrument is regarded as the quoted price in an active market if the
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency; and if those prices represent
the actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
Otherwise, the market is deemed to be inactive. Normally, a market is considered to
be inactive when:

o The bid-ask spread is increasing; or
e The bid-ask spread varies significantly; or
¢ There has been a significant decline in trading volume.

When the financial instrument of the Group is traded in an active market, its fair
value is illustrated by the category and nature as follows:

o Financial assets and liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded in
an active market, for example, investment in stock of listed companies: the fair
value is based on the market quoted price.

® C(Close-end funds with standard terms and conditions, such as money market
funds, and bond funds; investors can require the investment trust company to
redeem the fund at any time. The fair value is based on the net value of the fund.

Except for the above-mentioned financial instruments traded in an active market,
the fair value is based on the valuation techniques or the quotation from the
counterparty. The fair value refers to the current fair value of the other financial
instruments with similar conditions and characteristics, using a discounted cash
flow analysis or other valuation techniques, such as calculations of using models
(for example, applicable yield curve from Taipei Exchange, or average quoted price
on interest rate of commercial paper from Reuters), based on the information
acquired from the market at the balance sheet date.
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When the financial instrument of the Group is not traded in an active market, its
fair value is determined as follows:

¢ The fair value is determined based on the ratio of the quoted market price of the
comparative listed company and its book value per share. Also, the fair value is
discounted for its lack of liquidity in the market.

e The fair value is determined by using the asset based approach, whose
assumptions are based on the market approach, income approach, cost approach
or other valuation methods according to the nature of the assets or liabilities of
the subject companies.

b)  Derivative instruments

The fair value is determined by using the models that are acceptable to the market
participants, for example, discounted cash flow analyses or option pricing models.
Forward exchange contracts are measured using quoted forward exchange rates.
The fair value of structured interest derivative financial instruments is determined
by using the proper option pricing models, such as Black-Scholes model, or other
valuation technique, such as Monte Carlo simulation.

Transfer between level 2 and level 1

For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, there was no change on the fair value
hierarchy of level 2 and level 1 financial asset.

Movement of level 3

Fair value
through other
Fair value through  comprehensive
profit or loss income
Unguoted equity
Private fund instruments
January 1, 2018 $ 612,978 630,405
Total gains or losses:
Recognized in profit and loss (18,166) -
Recognized in other comprehensive income - (51,781
Purchased 127,593 -
Derecognized - (15,837)
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates - 1,699
December 31, 2018 3 722,405 564,486
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The preceding gains and losses were recognized as other gains and losses and unrealized
gains (losses) on valuation of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income. As of December 31, 2018, the related information of the assets which were still
held by the Group were as follows:

2018
Total gains or losses
Profit or loss (recognized as other gains and Josses) $ (18,166)
Other comprehensive income (recognized as unrealized gains (51,781}

(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income)

Quantified information on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) used in fair value
measurement

The Group’s financial instruments that use Level 3 inputs to measure fair value include
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss — private funds” and “financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income — equity investments™,

Most of the fair value measurements categorized within Level 3 use the single and
significant unobservabie input. Equity investments without an active market contains
multiple significant unobservable inputs. The significant unobservable inputs of the
equity investments are independent from each other, as a result, there is no relevance
between them.

Quantified information of significant unobservable inputs was as follows:

Inter-relationship
between significant
uncbservable inputs

Valuation Significant and fair value
Item technique unobservable inputs measurement
Financial assets at s Comparable s Price-book ratio (as of ¢ The higher the
fair value through listed companies ~ December 31, 2018 was price-book ratio, the
other approach 1.34~3.50) higher the fair value
comprehensive o Market liquidity discount ~ ® The higher the
income — equity rate (as of December 31, market liquidity

discount rate, the

investments without 2018 was 80%) ;
lower the fair value

an active market

o Net asset value o Net asset value Not applicable
method
Financial assets at Net asset value Net asset value Not applicable
fair value through method
profit or loss —
private fund
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7)  Sensitivity analysis of reasonably possible alternative assumptions for fair value -
measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

The fair value measurements of the Group’ s financial instruments are reasonable.
However, changes in the use of valuation models or valuation variables may affect the
estimations. For fair value measurements in Level 3, a fluctuation in the valuation
variable by 5% would have the following effect:

Effects of changes in fair

Effects of changes in fair value on other
value on profit or loss comprehensive income
Increase or
Inputs decrease Favorable Unfavorable Favorable Unfavorable
December 31, 2018
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Private fund Net asset value 5% $ 36,120 (36,120} - -
Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income
Equity investments without Price-book ratio 5% - - 20,665 (20,665)
an active market
” Market liquidity 5% - - 20,665 20,665
discount rate
i Net asset value 5% - - 7,559 (7,559}

The favorable and unfavorable effects represent the changes in fair value, and fair value
is based on a variety of unobservable inputs calculated using a valuation technique. The
analysis above only reflects the effects of changes in a single input, and it does not
include the inter-relationships with another input.

There were no financial assets with fair value hierarchy level 3 for the year ended
December 31, 2017.

(aa) Management of financial risk

¢y

The Group is exposed to the extent of the risks arising from financial instruments as below :
1)  Credit risk

2)  Liquidity risk

3)  Market risk

Detailed information about exposure risk arising from the aforementioned risk was listed

below. The Group’s objective, policies and process for managing risks and methods used to
measure the risk arising from financial instruments.

(Continued)
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Risk management framework

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group’s risk management framework.
The Group’ s internal auditor is responsible to identify and analyze the risks faced by the

Group. The management of each division sets appropriate risk limits and controls, and monitor
risks that follow the adherence to limits. The Group, through their training and management
standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment
in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Group’ s Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the
Group’ s risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk

management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Group’s Audit
Committee is assisted in its oversight role by the internal auditor. The internal auditor
undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and the procedures,
and the result of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to financial

instruments fails to meet it contractual obligations that arises principally from the Group’s
accounts receivable, investments in securities and investments in bond.

1)  Notes and accounts receivable

According to the credit policy, the Group analyze each new customer individually for
their credit worthiness before granting the new customer standard payment terms and

delivery terms. The Group’s review includes external ratings of customers’ financial
information and bank references. Credit lines are established for each customer and
reviewed periodically.

2) Investments

The credit risk exposure in the bank deposits, fixed income investments and equity
instruments are measured and monitored by the Group’s finance department. Since the

Group’ s transactions resulted from the external parties with good credit standing and
investment grade above financial institutions, publicly traded stock companies and
unlisted companies with good reputation, there are no incompliance issues and therefore
no significant credit risk.

3)  Guarantees

According to the Group’s policy, the Group can only provide guarantees which are listed
under the regulation. The Group did not provide any guarantee not listed under the
regulation as of December 31, 2018 and 2017.
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(iv) Liquidity risk

(v}

Liquidity risk is a risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed

conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group’ s financial department monitors cash flow requirements and optimizing its cash
return on investments. The Group aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents at
an amount in excess of expected cash flows on financial liabilities (other than trade payables)
over the succeeding one year. The Group also monitors the level of expected cash outflows on
account and other payables. This excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that
cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters. As of December 31, 2018, the Group
has unused bank credit lines for short-term borrowings, long-term bank borrowings, and the
unused bank credit lines for short-term borrowings and long-term borrowings amounted to
$2,190,784 thousand, $5,779,000 thousand and $3,068,629 thousand, respectively.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates and equity prices, which will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

The Group is exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the respective functional currencies of the Group’s
entities, primarily the New Taiwan Dollars (NTD), US Dollars (USD) and Chinese Yen
(RMB).

The policy of response to currency risk :

1) The Group reserves the foreign currency position arising from sales appropriately to
remit the foreign currency expenditures and then meets the natural hedge.

2)  The Group uses foreign currency borrowings and forward exchange contracts to hedge
the remaining nature of currency risk arising from the netting of foreign currency
accounts receivable and accounts payable.

3) The Group manages the currency risk and then determines the timing of exchanging the
foreign cwrrency through collecting the foreign currency information. It also stays in
contact with the foreign currency department to control the foreign currency trend and
market information.
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(ab) Capital management

The Board of Directors’ policy is to maintain a strong capital base to maintain the confidence of
investors, creditors and market, and to sustain future development of the business. For the goal of
business sustainability, the Group monitors the expansion plan as well as the level of dividends to
ordinary shareholders.

For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group’s return on common equity was
12.27% and 17.43%, respectively. The Group’s debt ratio at the reporting date were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
Debt ratio 27.79 % ‘3031 %

As of December 31, 2018, there were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management.
(ac) Financing activity

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities were as follows:

Non-cash
Cash flows changes
Amortization
of arranger
Proceeds Repayments fee of
January 1, from long-  of long-term syndicated  December 31,
2018 term debt debt Qthers loan 2018
Long-term borrowings $ 6,257,536 4,891,000 (5,346,025) - 89 5,802,600
Guarantee deposit
received 143.685 - - (617) - 143.068
Total liabilities from
financing activity $__ 6,401,221 4,891,000 (5,346,025) {617 89 5,945,668

(7} Related-party transactions
(a) Names and relationship with related parties

The followings are entities that have had transactions with related party during the periods covered
in the consolidated financial statements:

Name of related party Relationship with the Group

Jiangsu CM / Merit Agriculture Development Co., Ltd. Associates
Winresp INC. "
Chainwin i-Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Huaian branch Other related parties
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- (b) Significant transactions with related parties

(@

(i)

(i)

(iv)

)

Loans to related parties were as follows:

Chainwin Cayman provided an unsecured loan, with an interest rate of 4.35% to its associates,
Jiangsu CM / Merit Agriculture Development Co., Ltd. At December 31, 2017, the outstanding

balance of the loan amounted to USD $6,000 thousand (NTD $178,560 thousand). Also, the
amount of interest receivable arising from the aforementioned loan were USD $124 thousand
(NTD $3,689 thousand) for the year ended December 31, 2017. Jiangsu CM/Merit Agriculture
Development Co., Ltd. had repaid the loan on February 2018. '

The amount of interest revenue arising from the aforementioned loan was USD $30 thousand

(NTD $892 thousand) and USD $124 thousand (NTD $3,734 thousand) for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.

Purchases

The amounts of significant purchases by the Group from related parties were as follows:

2018 2017
Other related parties S 786 -

The terms and pricing of purchase transactions with related parties were not significantly
different from those offered by other vendors. There was no such transaction at December 31,
2017.

Receivables from related parties

December 31, December 31,
Account Relationship 2018 2017
Other receivables —related parties  Associates-Fiangsu CM / Merit
Agriculture Development Co.,
Lid. B - 182,249

Guarantee

As of December 31, 2018, Chainwin Cayman had provided a guarantee for ioans amounting to
USD $7,350 thousand (NTD $225,792 thousand) to its associate, Jiangsu CM/Merit
Agriculture Development Co., Ltd. There was no such transaction at December 31, 2017.

Property transactions

In 2018, the prepayments were amounting to USD $704 thousand (NTD $21,617 thousand)
due to Chainwin Cayman purchase property, plant and equipment from its associates, Winresp
INC. There was no such transaction for the year ended December 31, 2017.
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(c) Transactions with key management personnel

Key management personnel compensation were comprised as below:

87

(9) Commitments and contingencies:

(a) Contingencies: None.

(b} Commitment:

2018 2017
Short-term employee benefits A 396,899 385,172
Post-employment benefits 802 766
5 397,701 385,938
(8) Pledged assets:
The carrying amount of pledged assets were as follows:
December 31, December 31,
Pledged assets Pledged to secure 2018 2017
Other non-current assets Gas deposits 5 4,700 4,700
Other non-current assets Customs guarantee 20,050 20,955
Other non-current assets Government subsidy
deposits 4,300 -
Other non-current assets Plant deposits 12,749 -
Property, plant and equipment Long-term borrowings and 2,759,181 2,858,234
line of credit
Investment property Long-term borrowings and 351,631 1.441.902
line of credit
Total 3 3,152,611 4,325,791

(i) The unrecognized commitment of acquisition of plant expansion and machinery equipment

were as follows:

The unrecognized amount

(i) The unused letters of credit

December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
$ 4,726,547 6,114,772
December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
$ 70.543 54,918
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(10) Losses due to major disasters: None.
(11) Subsequent events:

On January 11, 2019, the Board of Directors of the Company’s subsidiary, Win Semiconductors Cayman
Islands Co., Ltd., resolved to subscribe the new shares contributed by its subsidary, Chainwin Biotech and
Agrotech (Cayman Islands) Co., Ltd, for the 22,000 thousand shares (upper limited), with par value of
USD 2 per share, amounting to USD $44,000 thousand (upper limited) in cash.

(12) Others:

The followings were the summary statement of employee benefits, depreciation and amortization expenses
by function for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017:

2018 2017
Classified Classified Classified Classified
as operating | as operating Total as operating | as operating Total
COStS expenses costs expenses
Employee benefits

Salaries 2,006,133 902,528 2,908,661 1,809,615 797,169 2,606,784
Labor and health insurance 168,800 44,871 213,671 132,238 40,809 173,047
Pension 76,207 23,711 99,918 60,578 19,543 80,121
Director remuneration - 74,510 74,510 - §9,810 89,810
Others 62,014 15,454 77,468 52,062 13,433 65,495
Depreciation 2,922,094 236,456 3,158,550 2,334,089 180,523 2,514,612
IAmortization 18,131 45,457 63,588 15,164 32,234 47,398
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Information on significant transactions:

89

The following is the information on significant transactions required by the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Issuers” for the Group:

(i) Loans to other parties:

(In thousands of dollars)

Biotech and Perit

Number | Nameof | Nameol | Account
Mote 1) lender borrawer name  [Relaied party
! iChaimsin  [angsu CM ther

Agretech  JApniculture
KCayman
slands) Co.,fCo., L1d.
lLtd

Yes

Highest batance Purpases of | Transaction Coltaieral
of financing to Range of fund amounl for | Reasons Individual | Meadriim
other parties inlerest rates|financing for|  business for funding leanflimiit of fund
during the period] Ending balance | Amount of used | dusing ihe |het betwsen twe | shortaerm | Allowance Timits finanding
iRote 2) Hoie2) loan faitivies | _ period [ fNoted) | parties | financine |forbaddebt| lem | Vale [ (Noted) | (Noted) |
184,320 . - 4.25% 1 - Working - None - [Netequily [Net equity
I apital 20% A%
(USD &,000)

594,265 | 1,188,532

Note 1: Company numbering as follows:

Issuer—0

Investee starts from 1

Note 2: The credit amount to lending.

Note 3: Purposes of lending were as follows:

1. Business relationship

2. Shoert-term {inancing

Note 4: The loan limit provided by Chainwin Biotech and Agrotech (Coyman Islands) Co., Ltd, to a particular single party and to other parties should not execed 20% and
A40%, tespectively, of its equity based on the most recent audited or reviewed financial statement by a certified accountant.

(11} Guarantees and endorsements for other parties:

(In thousands of dollars)

Counter-party of

Aprolcch  [Apriculture
Cayman  [Development
Islands) Co.,[Ca., Lid.

Ltd.

guarantec and Limitation on
cndorsement ameun of Highest Balanee of Propenty
guarantees and|  balance for | guarantees pledged for
Relationship| endarsements| guarantces and and puaranices
with the | for a speeific i udarscinent and
Numberj Name of Company | cnterpaise during as of Actual usage |endor
Note 1Y _guarantor Namg {Note 2) MNote 3 the period _ Jreponing daie| _amoum (Amount)
1 [Chaimwin  [Hangse CM / 6 891,399 2357192 225,792 153,418 -
Biotech and [Merit (USD 20,0177  (USD 7,350 (USD 7,350) (USD 4,994

Ratio of
accumnulated
amounts of Parcit Subsidiary [Endarsements/
guarantces and company  fendorscments? | guarantecs to
ende to]  Maxi ndo g third parties
net worth of the | amount for | guaramees to {io third pamies| on behalf of
latest guarantees and phird partics o on behalfof | sempanies &
financial endorsements | behalf of parent Mainland
statements {Note 3) subsidiary ¢ompAny China
7.6 % | Net equity 5094 B B Y
=1,485,665

Note 1: Company numbering as follows:

Issucr—0

Investee starts from 1

Note 2: Refationship with the Company

1. Ordinary business relationship.

2. An entity, directly and indirectly, owned more than 50% voting shares of a guarantor.

3. A puarantor, directly and indircetly, owned more than 50% voting shares of an entity.

4, An entity, dircctly and indirectly, owned more than $0% voting shares of a guarantor.

. Fulfillment of contractual chligations by providing mutual endorsements and guarantees for peer or joint builders in order to undertake a construction project.

6. An entity that is guaranteed and endorsed by all capital contributing sharcholders in proportion to their sharcholding pereentapes.

7. Peer engaged in the escrow of the sales contract on pre-sale house under the Consumer Protection Act.

Naote 3: The guarantees and endorsements limit provided by Chainwin Biotech and Agrotech (Cayman Islands) Co., L1d. 10 a particular single party and to other partics
should not exceed 30% and 50%, respectively, of its equity based on the most recent audited or reviewed financial statement by a certified accountant.
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(In thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Ending balance Highest
Category and Retationship . Shares/Units . Percentage of . Pereentage of
Namne of holder pame of security | with company Account fitle Gin thousandsy | Camvitgvalue | gunerchin (24) Fair valug awnershin (% Remark
The Company  [Green Seal Holding Nong ICurvent financial 490 17.475 0.30 17475 0.30
L imited/Stock lassets at fair value
hrough profit or loss
[WIN Venture Capital [Sercomm Corporation / x " 1,238 79,480 0.50 79,480 0.50
Corp. Biock
[l lAllianz Global Investors x " 132 t,656 - 1,656 -
[Tatwan Moncy Market
Fund
# ICapital Moncy Market x ” 289 4.652 - 4653 -
Fund
103,263 103,263
The Company  [MagiCapital Fund 1T L [Non-current financial - 183,842 581 183,842 5.81
L.P. lassets ar fair value
hraugh profit or loss
» CDIB Capital Grawil " ¥ - 57,076 3.30 57,076 417
Pariners L. P.
" iFul Hwa Tung-ta Fund x " 15,725 299,271 - 29927 -
] [Fub Fiwa Oriental Fund " » 5,000 48,240 . 48,240 -
" Fuh Hwa Smart Foergy - " 12,000 93,600 - 93,600 -
[Fund
” L eaSun Winion LP ” » - 30,396 14.25 30,390 14.25
F] INFC Fund ILLP " » . 5.586 19.41 9.986 1941
722,405 2408
” [nventec Solar Energy " Non-current financial 34,000 118,508 10.51 118,508 10.51
ICorporation / Stock lassets at fair value
lrough other
income
# IMagiCap Venture " ” 1,000 93,780 4.58 93,780 458
[Capital Co., Led/
[Preferred Stock A
» ICDIB Capiiai Creative L4 ” 5,000 106,761 33 106,768 333
[ndustries Lémited /
|Stock
» [New Future Capital ] L4 10,000 100,554 15.87 100,554 1587
[Co., Lid./ Stock
” [Grand Fortune Venturc ] ” 5,000 57,400 6.87 57,400 687
[Corp. / Stack
» ITEQ CORPORATION » » 24,116 1,208,785 7.96 1,205,785 804
! Stock
Win Semiconductors [Broadeom Ltd/ Stack  [Subsidiary's main " 75 585,841 0.02 585,861 0.02
iCaymnan Isfands Co., chicot
Ltd.
» lAnokiwave Inc. / Scni bsidiary’s L] 1,264 63,829 7.93 63,829 10.05
IB Preferred Stock elicnt
JWIN Venture Capital [Misho Image [The Company™s ” 3,300 . 8.09 - 8.0%
ICorp. [Technology Ine. / Stock elient
» IMOAI Electronics None x 300 - 0.92 - 0.52
ICorporation/Stock
” IMerit Biotech " L4 1,320 - 2.93 - 293 {Note 1)
[INC./Stock
[Chainwin Bioteeh and [Formose Fartune Group L * 12 23,654 4.78 23,654 4.78
[Agrotech {Cayman  [Cayman Islands Co.,
[slands) Co., Ltd. Lid. -
2,386,132 2,356,132 -
The Company  [MagiCap Venture ” Non-current financial 2,990 23.900 13.70 (Notc 2) 15.75
ICapital Co., Ltd. / assels at amontized
[Preferred Swock B ot

Note 1: The Board of Directors of Merit Bictech INC. had resolved to dissolve and liquidate the company. As of December 31, 2018, the company is still within the period
of liquidation.

Note 2: The Group intends to hold its asset to maturity to eollect contractual cash flows and these cash flows consist solely of payments of principal and interest on the
principal ameunt outstanding. Therefore, the investment was classified as non-current financial assct at amertized cost,
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(iv) Tndividual securities acquired or disposed of with accumulated amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 million or 20% of

the capital stock:
(In thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
Relaionship Beginning Balance Purchases Sales Ending Balance
Name of Catcgoryand | Account | Name of with the Shares {in Shares (in Shares {in Gain (lass) on| Shares (in
company __| name of seewritv| _name unter-party] _company | thousands) | Amount | thousands) | Amount ] thousands) | Price Cast disposal _[thousands)] Amount
The Company [Win lovestments - [Subsidiary 62,000 1,922,136 52,000 1,581,520 - - - - 114,000( 3,848,230
ISemicond d [Note Iy
ICayman Islands [for using
KCo., Ltd/ Stock kquity
ncthod
. KCapital Money  [Current - - 124691 200,000 2342 150,000 21,811 350,293| 350,000 293 - -
IMariet Fund  [financial
fasscts at fair
valuc
hrough
profit ar loss
» Union Money " - - 15,234 200,000 15,204 200,000 30,438 400,105] 400,000 105 - -
IMarket Fund
» Allianz Global n - - 24,086 300,000 - - 24,086 300,715{ 300,000 715 - -
[nvestors Taiwan
Money Market
tFund
[Win KChainwin lInvestments - Investment 32,610 2,009,792 25944 1,575,097 - - - - 58,554 | 3,075,499
iconductors [Biotech and laccounted Rhrough (Nole 1)
ICayman Istands [Agrotech Ifor using ksubsidiary
Ca., Ltd. Cayman Islandsfequity
Co., Lid. / Stock mmethed
IChainwin Piangsu Investments - Investment - 214,272 - 349,970 - - . - - 433,751
|Biotech and CMMerit laccounted khrough (Nole 2)
Aprotech A griculiure for using lassaciates
Caytman [Development  fequity
[slands) Co.,  [Co., Ltd. method
td.
" fanpsu Chaimwing L] - tnvestment - 321,285 - 643,600 - - - - - 965,551
ng Yuan khrough Note 1)
griculture subsidiary
evelapient
a., Ltd.

" iangsu " - " - 62,496 - 360,141 - - - - - 414,902
erit’CM (Note 1)
griculiure
evelopient
0., Ltd.

Note 1: The amount of ending balance was calculated using cquity method. The amount of the transaction and the cnding balance had been offset in the conselidated
financial statcments.

Note 2: The amount of ending balance was calculated using equity method.

{v) Acquisition of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 miilion or 20% of the capital stock:

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

If the counter-party is a related party,
disclose the previous transfer information | References
Relationship) Relatipnship for
Name of | Namic of [Transaction|Transaction| Status of  Counter-party] with the withthe | Dateof determining | Purpose of
company | property date amount pavment Company | Owner | Company | transfer | Amount price acquisition | Others
Uiangsu Factory [2018/10725( 617,213 [As of liangsu - N/A NA N/A NIA  [Price [Operating None
IChainwin buildings [December 31, Nantong comparison  [purpose
Kang Yuan [2018, the [Sanjian and price
Agriculture price paid IConstruction negotitation
Development [5168,588 Group Co.,
ICo., Ltd. Ltd.
PDiangsu Factory [2018/11/20 liangsu - N/A NfA N/A N/A - [Price [Operating None
IChainwin buildings [Nantong comparison  [purpose
|Agriculiure Sanjian and price
land Animal [Construction ncpotitation
Technology Group Co.,
[Co.. Ltd, Ltd.

(vi) Disposal of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 million or 20% of the capital stock: None.
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(vil) Related-party transactions for purchases and sales with amounts exceeding the lower of NT$100 million or 20% of the
capital stock:

(In thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Transaction details Transactions with tens AiTereC otesscoounts receivable (payable)
Percentage of total
Parcentage of notes/accounts
Name of Namre of total receivable
company Related party | relationship | Purchase/Sale Amount | purchases/sales | Payment terms | Unit prieg | Pavment teras | Ending balance (payable) Remark
The Company [Win [Subsidiary Sales (8,264,249 49 % 1-2 Month - - 942,499 63% {Note)
emicondustors
ayinan Jslands
0., Ltd.
[Win e Company [Parent Company{Purchase 8,264,249 100 % 12 Month - - (938,048, 100% {Nate)
[Semiconductors
KCayinan Istands
ICo., Ltd.

Note: The amounts of the transaction and the ending balance had been offset in the consolidated financial statements,
(viii) Receivables from related parties with amounts exceeding the lower of NT$100 million or 20% of the capital stock:

{In thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Name of Nature of Ending Turnover Overdue Amounts received in|  Allowanee
company Counter-party relationship balance rate Amount Action taken subsequent period for bad debts | Remark
The Company  [Win Semiconductors [Subsidiary 942,499 742 - - 942,499 - (Note)
ICayman Islands Co.,
[Ltd.

Note: The amounts of the transaction and the ending balance had been offset in the consolidated financial statements.
(ix) Trading in derivative instruments: None.
(x) Business relationships and significant intercompany transactions:

(Tn thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Nature of Intercompany transactions
No, relationship - Percentage of the consolidated
(Note 1) [Name of company | Mame of counter-party (Notc 2) Account name Amount Trading terms nct revenue or total assets
0 [The Cempany Win Semiconductors 1 [Operating revenue 8,264,249 Note 3 47.74%
Cayman Islands Co,, Ltd.
0 [The Company Win Semiconductors 1 lAccounts 942,499 " 2.66%
Cayman Tslands Co., Ltd, recetvable— related
[partics
1 Win The Company 2 lAccounts 938,048 ” 2.65%
[Semiconductors [payable— related
Cayman slands pantics
Co.. Ltd.
1 (Win The Company 2 Operating costs 8,264,249 " 47,74%
[Semiconductors
ICayman Islands
[Ca., Ltd.
1 [Win 'WIN SEMT. USA, INC. 3 IOperating expenses{ 79.594 " 0.46%
[Semiconductors
[Cayman Islands
ICor., Ltd,
2 WTIN SEMI. USA, |[Win Semiconductors 3 Operating revenue 79,594 " 0.46%
INC. [Cayman Islands Co., Ltd.

Note 1: Company numbering as follows:
Parent company—1)
Subsidiary starts from 1
Note 2; The numbering of the relationship between transaction parties as follows:
Parent company to subsidiary—1
Subsidiary to parent company—2
Subsidiary to subsidiary—3

Note 3; There is no significant difference from wransaction terms with non-related parties.
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The following is the information on investees for the year ended December 31, 2018 (excluding information on investees in
Mainland China):

(In thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Main Original invesimant amount Balance as of December 31, 2018 Highest Nel income Share of
Businesses and December 31,] December 33, Shares [ a g Carrying [T spe of | (lasses) | profits (Jesses)
Name ofinvesior Name of investen Localion products 2008 2017 in thoosands) ] ownersh valug ownership | ofinvestee | ofinvesiee | Remark
[The Company WVIN SEMIL USA, INC. Cakifornia USA  [Marketing 8,208 8200 1,000 100.00 % 13|  100.00 %] 4,533 4533 | Nore 1}
. [Win Semiconductors Cayman  [Cayman [sfands  fSelling of GaAs walers 3,503,656 1922,136 114,000 10000 % 3.848.230| 10000 93] (200462 (200,462 (Nole 1)
lslands Co., Lid
) linventec Energy Corporation  [Taiwan [Solar companent modute - 640,157 1,768 3452 %4 - 345295 - -
manufacturing
» YIN Venture Capita Corp.  [Taiwan [Investment activities 250,000 250,000 25,000 100.00 % 172,815 100.60 94 12,978 12978 | (Mot 1)
" Phalume Biotech Group, Inc  [Taiwan [Researching, manufacturing 304,150 180,500 24,450 I989% 347206 3959 9| (117,589, (41,928] (Note 1)
land selling of high density
laene chips and Lesling service
" ICSDC Private Limited |Singapore [Development and - . 025 2500 % - 25,00 %) (200,591 -
Imanulacturing of compound
ksemiconducrors 1echinclopies
YIX Venture Cepital |Phalanx Biotech Group, Inc.  [Taiwan ing 2 19.600 39,600 3,600 582 % 50,709 6825 (117,589 (71,333) (Note 1)
ICerp and selling of high density
joene chips and testing senvice
= Winresp INC Taiwan Developing and selliag of 40,000 - 2,500 1852 % 36,297 19.38 %) 1,436 (4,408)
water treatmenl system 2nd
fwholesaling of medical
lappliances
Vin Semiconductors [Rainbow Star Group Limited  [British Virgin  [Investment activities 62,926 62,920 38 49,30 % 62,820 4930 % 2,513 {1,238
KCeyran tslands Ce., Islands
fLid
] ICliaimwin Biotech and Agrotech|Cayman Isfands  [Investmenl activities. 3,584,889 2,609,792 18,554 S4TN Y% 30754 917) 9] {257,308 (239,736 (Nale |}
Cayman Islands) Co., L1d
IChaimwin Biotech and [Formasa Fortune Group Co.,  [Brilish Virgin  [Invesiment activilies . BT - - - 100.00 55 156 156 [ (Note 2)
|Agratech (Cayman  [L1d slands.
Islands) Ca, Lid
[Phatam: Biolech [Phafanx Bictech Limiled [Hong Kong Investment activilies 8,784 8764 - 10000% (23953 100 00 %4 16,508) (5,906) (Mol 1)
1Group, Inc.
n [PhalanxBio, Inc usA ISelling of high density gene 208,110 208,1t0 2550]  100.00 %4 (.29 10000 % (3.139) (3.139) (Note 1)
fchip and lest service

Note 1: The amount of the Lransaction had been offset in the consolidated financial statements.

Note 2; Farmosa Fortune Group Co.,, Ltd, has been tiquidated on November 30, 2018.

Information on investment in Mainland China:

(@)

The names of investees in Mainland China, the main businesses and products, and other information:

(In thousands of dollars}

Irmeimenr flarat
Acourmilotésd mtfloms: Ansimuibstod ol Comyingyalue [ ied
Malog | of messment from of imeamensfrom | s oo Plighes Porcerisge | towoamem | 250 Dotmber | e or
Name of Moin basinesses | Toial amouns of Tabsan ag.d ron s (scs) | percrmiageal of income floses) | AL208 | comingain
imesse andgeoducts | of pakdin grpiall _irveament | Jomorv 1,201 | Oufiw | tatonr | Decemwe 31,2018 | ofihe inveace | ownerstip ) ownsrship Note ) Poird) | oumem period | Remark
g Chmimein Kang. ercloping hog 9S9NN] {hate 1) 26013 o D 905.3% [T 5471 o 9171 5 e %5580 . p—
wan Agricultere kaeming technology and (FAMD 214,669 WSp san fWsD 21000 USD 29471 (USD  (2.920) USD (292001 (USD 3143
[Developmem Co., Lid  frading
jopgsa Coolmein [Farm fecd developing WOHSL r= 1) mimp wme) - wso e (2108 7 971% (2.0 L0 © | e
IAgticuinure and Anima fand imding wsp 2790 wsn 1046 s 8000 Y wso ain WSO @Iy USD %M
[Teclinglogy Co., Lid
g O/ Mers [Deseloping hog 1208028 e 13 15001 wp0) - we (187,99 10417 sy [ENIE 331 - .
Agricul i o (USE 39.054 USD 10503 (USD 12,000 wso 22908 VSO (6.166) s oy ST HaD
Co. Lid ading
e Meri! €M ocveloging Iog: sesont| qroe 1) 107,639 159424 . 17063 3672 s59 %) 159954 .7 114,902 . ok B
Agsicathne i end (USD 13,200 Wsp 1809 sp 1700 Wsp 13204 @D GRn WP (1] USD 13506
leo. Lia raing
- Ioeveloping beg nrass| e 1) 149,663 . . 1366 61 681 % o (37, 1294 . oo
? i hnalogy and  (USD 4,500 UsD 4372 (USD 4872y (USD (O sD (i) USD 2%0 {noic B}
Agriculs 1ading
o, Lid
liangsa Mcril Renfu  [Developing bog M| e 1) 41009 - . 11009 o 9471 % 71 G %313 - okt B
Agrianiure Devclopmend faming 1ecbnology and (RMD 16177 (usD 1,318 (USD  1333) {USD (0.34) {USD (M) (USD LB
[Co. lad rading
; e of hich deris 8784|  (ioe 2) 598 . . IR 16,906 ! (6.906 .95 -
Oncarras biclech - fSelling of bigh demsty | gy g wsD e sp wofavD 0520 s BIA em (L5m) GME 359 e
YKunshan) Co, ird peene chip and &9
Fervke

(Continued)



94

WIN Semiconductors Corp. and Its Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(ii) Limitation on investment in Mainland China:

(In thousands of dollars)

[Accumulated Investment in Mainland Chinal

Investment Amounts Authorized by

Upper Limit on Investment

Investor as of December 31, 2018 Investment Commission, MOEA (Note 6)
Comipany Name
The Company 2,554,402 2,805,017 15,362,631
and subsidiaries (USD 83,133 ) (USD 91,309 )

Note 1:
Note 2:
Note 3:
Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:
Note 7:

The Group invested in Maintand China companies through Chainwin Bictech and Agratech (Cayman Islands) Co., Ltd , which is established in a third region.

The Group invested in Maintand China companies through Phalanx Biotech Limited (HK), which is established in a third region,

The amount of net income (losses) was recognized based on the audited financial statements of the investee companies.

Cm:rying value as of December 31, 2018 was with reference te the anount recognized by the investment through subsidiaries to subsidiaries established in a third
region.

Tnvestment income {loss) recognized was transiated into New Taiwan Dollars at the average exchange rate for the cach menth from January 1, 2018 to December
31, 2018. The other amounts Telated to forcign currency were translated inte New Taiwan Dollars at the exchange rate at the balance sheet date.

Amount of upper limit on investment was the higher between sixty percentage of total equity or total consolidated equity.
‘Fhe meeting of sharcholders of Jiansu Merit/ Cofeojoycome Agriculeure Development Co., Lid. had decided 10 dissolve the compary on October 24, 2018 and has

been liquidated on January 25, 2019, respectively.
Naote 8:

(iii) Significant transactions: None.

(14) Segmentinformation:

(@)

(b

The amount of the transaction and the ending batance had been offset in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’ s reportable segment is the foundry segment. The foundry segment engages mainly in researching, developing,
manufacturing, and selling of GaAs wafers, etc.
Other operating segments are mainly engaged in investment activities agriculture technology and gene chip and testing, which do
not exceed the quantitative thresholds to be reported.
Operating segment profit or loss (includes reportable segment revenue and expenses), segment assets, segment liabilities, and their
measurement and reconciliations for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the reportable amount is similar to that in the
report used by the operating decision maker and the operating segment accounting policies are similar to the ones described in
note 4 “significant accounting policies” were as follows:
Reconciliation
218 Foundry Other and elimination Total
Revenue :

Revenue from external customers ) 16,932,784 377,932 - 17,310,716
Interest expenses $ 22,456 - - 22,456
Depreciation and amortization K 3,174,490 44,797 2,851 3,222,138
Shares of Josses of associates and joint ventures

accounted for using equity methed b (17.701) (100,136) - (117,837
Reportable segment profit or loss § 3,496.670 (288,477) (2.851) 3,205,342
Assets:

Capital expenditures in noncurrent assets 8§ 5,135.225 503,009 - 5.638,234

Reconciliation
2017 Foundry Other and elimination Total
Revenue :

Revenue from external customers $ 16.663.899 422,456 - 17,086,355
Interest expenses 8 54,946 - - 54,946
Depreciation and ameortization 8 2.529.494 29,639 2,877 2,562,010
Shares of losses of associates and joint ventures

accounted for using equity method b (129,304) (37.483) - (166.787)
Reportable segment profit or loss LY 4,648,412 (59,930) {19.138) 4,569,335
Assets:

Capital expenditures in noncurrent assets s 3.548,838 530.671 - 4.079.509
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The segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities of the operating segment above were consistent with
the related accounts shown in the consolidated balance sheets and consohdated statements of
comprehensive income of the Group.

Segment information by products and services

The information from the product and the service segment coincides with the administrative
segment, and its revenue from external customers was disclosed in Note 14(b).

Geographic information

In presenting information on the basis of geography, segment revenue is based on the geographical
location of customers, and segment assets are based on the geographical location of the assets.

Revenue from external customers for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

Area 2018 2017
External Customers:
America $ 4,169,406 3,141,216
Asia 10,369,004 10,564,507
Taiwan 2,131,793 2,838,695
Europe 640,513 540,249
Australia - 1.688
Total $ 17.310.716 17,086,355
December 31, December 31,
Area 2018 2017
Non-current Assets:
Taiwan A 18,991,047 17,327,761
Asia 782,588 357,399
America 232 292
Total 5 19,773,867 17,685,452

Non-current assets include property, plant and equipment, investment property, intangible assets and
prepayments for business facilities; not including financial instruments, goodwill and deferred tax

assets.
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Major customers

For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, sales to customers greater than 10% of net
revenue were as follows:

2018 2017
Netf revenue Percentage of Net revenue Percentage of
amount net revenue (%) amount net revenue (%)
Operating revenue of the Group-A company § 2,875,850 17 2,024,175 12
Operating revenue of the Group-B company 2,788,677 16 3,634,444 21
Operating revenue of the Group-C company 1,969,031 11 §29,043 5
Operating revenue of the Group-D company 1,315,655 8 1,998,397 12
Operating revenue of the Group-E company 11 - 1.697.935 10

$ 8,949,224 52 10,183,994 60




